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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®RE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or "Directors”),
| am pleased to present the 2019 full year results to the
shareholders of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the
“"Company”, and, including subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we").

The Sino-US trade war continued in 2019 and the US Federal
Reserve has been forced to cut interest rates to support the
economy. Some manufacturers in China have had to move their
production to Southeast Asia. The trade situation remained
chaotic and Chinese economic growth notably slowed as
a result. Rising prices for imported raw materials have put
domestic manufacturing operations in a bind.

The Chinese corrugated packaging industry has been going
through a great change since the fourth quarter of 2017. The
Chinese government has started to restrict waste paper imports
and raised import quality requirements. Import volumes for
corporates have been reduced by 20—-30% in 2018 and another
30-40% in 2019. As China remains a major net exporter,
there is an acute shortfall of domestic waste paper supply,
and containerboard manufacturers are starved of raw materials,
resulting in a decline in production volume and sales across the
industry.

China’s reduction in purchases of overseas waste paper resulted
in high prices for domestic waste paper. However, overseas
waste paper supplying overseas rose quickly, and overseas
waste paper prices fell substantially below domestic waste
paper prices. This reduced the cost of production for overseas
containerboard manufacturers, and some domestic companies
started to source from overseas suppliers, reducing demand
for domestic containerboard and affecting the development of
China's corrugated packaging industry.

The Renminbi exchange rates appreciated slightly in the
first quarter of 2019, but eased towards the second quarter.
The Renminbi exchange rates in the first half of 2019 were
substantially below the levels in the first half of 2018. The
exchange rates in the second half of 2019 were also lower than
the levels in the second half of 2018. This has a significant
negative impact on the corrugated packaging industry as
most enterprises in the industry focused on domestic sales in
Renminbi, but raw materials sourced overseas are in US dollars,
with volatility in the Renminbi exchange rates putting pressure
on enterprises.
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Although the Group's overall sales volume was stable in 2019, the
aforesaid reasons have resulted in a decline in the Group's average
selling prices and thus a decline in the Group’s revenue. Although
raw materials prices have also declined, the Group lacked enough
waste paper for production, and recurring expenses fell by less
as well, resulting in the Group recording a loss for the year.
Fortunately, the Group has consistently focused on producing
containerboard and corrugated packaging products with short
production periods, and has a high quality customer base with
nearly zero bad debts. In addition, the Group was in net cash at
the end of 2019 (with total bank balances and cash exceeding
total bank borrowings), putting the Group’'s overall financial
position at very healthy levels.

In order to have enough raw materials to make containerboard,
the Group has located a site in Southeast Asia and will lease a
new factory for the installation of a new production line, to convert
waste paper into pulp for shipment into China, to feed into our
existing facilities in the Chinese Mainland for the production of
containerboard. This small shift in production process overseas
will allow the Group to meet Chinese government import
requirements and also put the Group's production volume and
business back on the right track. The production site is now under
construction and is expected to start production in mid-2020.

Looking ahead to 2020, we believe global trade and the global
economy will be significantly impacted in the first half of 2020
by the novel coronavirus and the Chinese economy will remain
under pressure from the Sino-US trade war. That said, we firmly
believe that the Chinese government will launch new policies and
measures to counter its impact, and we remain optimistic that
effective policies will allow the Chinese economy to grow at a
stable pace and lift demand for corrugated packaging.

The Group will continue to improve our production process and
reduce wastage, and strictly control costs to alleviate the impact
of rising operating costs and provide more high-quality corrugated
packaging products to our customers. We remain committed to
extending our competitive advantage as a vertically integrated
producer and strive for sustainable long-term growth in earnings.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
management team and staff, express my gratitude for their
solidarity in facing adversities and various challenges, and also
thank our customers, suppliers, bankers and investors for their
support over the years. We will continue to strive to deliver better
returns to our shareholders.

Hui Sum Ping
Chairman
27th March, 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Chinese economic growth slowed down in 2019 and demand
for corrugated packaging declined. Although the Group's overall
sales volume was flat, average selling prices fell, resulting in
a 16.1% fall in revenue for the year. The revenue in first half
of 2019 fell by 6.6% compared to the first half of 2018. The
revenue in second half of 2019 were flat compared to the first
half of 2019, but fell by 23.9% compared to the second half of
2018.

The Group's upstream containerboard business produces
corrugating medium and linerboard primarily for our downstream
corrugated packaging business (making corrugated paper boards
and carton boxes). Some upstream products are sold directly
to customers, depending on market conditions. The upstream
and downstream businesses accounted for 48% and 52% of
revenue, respectively. Upstream revenue rose by 3.6% even
though average selling prices fell, with equipment utilization at
around 55%. Downstream revenue fell by 28.7%, primarily due
to a decline in average selling prices, with equipment utilization
at around 52%.

The Group's main raw material, waste paper, is sourced from
both domestic and overseas sources, and average prices fell
by around 20% from 2018 levels. Due to the raw materials
shortage, the Group’s equipment utilization fell. Even though
the Group has consistently strived to tightly control costs and
expenses, some overhead costs remain and the operational
deleverage from reduced selling prices ultimately resulted in the
Group recording a loss for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating results

The Group recorded a decrease in revenue of HK$229.8 million
in 2019, representing a fall of 16.1% from HK$1,423.9 million in
2018 to HK$1,194.1 million in 2019. The drop in revenue was
mainly attributed to the fall in Renminbi exchange rates and
average selling prices.

The average costs of main raw material, waste paper fell but
overhead fell by less, leading to a decrease in cost of sales
only by 11.8%. Cost of sales dropped from HK$1,223.6 million
in 2018 to HK$1,078.8 million in 2019.

Gross profit declined from HK$200.2 million in 2018 to HK$115.3
million in 2019, representing a 42.4% decrease. Gross profit
margin fell from 14.1% to 9.7%.

There was no much change for other income, falling from
HK$21.2 million in 2018 to HK$20.6 million in 2019.

Other gains and losses reducing HK$5.3 million from HK$7.6
million to HK$2.3 million, were mainly due to a fall in exchange
loss.

Selling and distribution costs reduced 10.7% from HK$51.2
million in 2018 to HK$45.7 million in 2019. The decrease was
arisen from stringent control on transportation cost though sales
volume was flat.

Due to the fall in salaries, administrative expenses fell 9.5%
from HK$92.5 million in 2018 to HK$83.7 million in 2019.

Other expenses fell HK$5.5 million from HK$23.7 million in 2018
to HK$18.2 million in 2019. The fall was primarily resulted from
the decrease in China duty and charges.

An increase in finance costs by HK$1.4 million, from HK$4.8
million in 2018 to HK$6.2 million in 2019, was owing to higher
HIBOR rates charged by banks throughout 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Operating results (Continued)

HK$12.8 million was credited to income tax expense, being
deferred tax credit of HK$16.2 million net provision for profits
tax of HK$2.2 million and withholding tax of HK$1.2 million.

Loss of HK$7.9 million was recorded in 2019 while profit of
HK$30.5 million was recorded in 2018, representing a decrease
of profit by HK$38.4 million. Profit margin fell from 2.1% to
-0.7%.

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

At 31st December, 2019, the Group's bank balances and
cash were HK$292.3 million (31st December, 2018: HK$219.4
million), mostly denominated in Renminbi.

All bank borrowings were unsecured, falling from HK$221.1
million to HK$216.9 million. Current unsecured bank borrowings
increased HK$16.9 million while non-current unsecured bank
borrowings declined HK$21.1 million. At 31st December, 2019,
the group recorded a net cash level (total bank balances and
cash less total bank borrowings) of HK$75.4 million.

Net current assets and current ratio of the Group were HK$186.6
million (31st December, 2018: HK$262.8 million) and 1.50 (31st
December, 2018: 1.64) respectively.

The Group spent HK$60.5 million on capital expenditures for
upgrading existing facilities and spent HK$63.8 million for paying
deposit for property, plant and equipment for Southeast Asia
project.

Debtors and creditors turnover were 49 days (2018: 45 days)
and 33 days (2018: 29 days) respectively. Inventory turnover has
been increased from 65 days to 84 days as inventory level was
exceptionally high at year end of 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent Liabilities

Tax audits were conducted by the Inland Revenue Department
("IRD") on the Company and its subsidiaries for the years of
assessment from 2004/2005 to 2012/2013 in the previous
years. On 28th October, 2019, a settlement proposal (the
"Settlement Proposal”) regarding the above tax audits and
the year of assessment from 2013/2014 to 2018/2019 was
submitted by the Company to the IRD, which was approved
by the IRD on 17th December, 2019. Based on the Settlement
Proposal, no additional tax provision need to be provided by
the Group and previous years' tax provision amounting to
HK$8,310,000 and interest payable of HK$1,773,000 were
settled by the tax reserve certificates of HK$11,171,000
purchased in prior years. Further, a tax penalty of HK$1,385,000
was charged by the IRD.

OUTLOOK

We expect the global economy and the Chinese economy to
slow going forward, and for overall demand to decline slightly.
In order to resolve the raw materials shortage facing our Group,
we are now actively pursuing the installation of brand new
production facilities at a new factory leasing in Southeast Asia,
to convert waste paper into pulp prior to shipping back to our
Chinese Mainland facilities for production of containerboard, in
order to reduce production cost and increase our sales volume.
We will continue to strive to gain pricing power and reasonably
transfer our operating costs to our customers. We promise
that we will continue to strive to improve production efficiency,
increase our sales volume, reduce raw materials wastage and
energy use, in order to offset the impact of rising costs, and
endeavor to improve the Group's profitability.

CLARIFICATION TO PROFIT WARNING
ANNOUNCEMENTS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
28th February, 2020 and 5th March, 2020 (the “Profit Warning
Announcements”) in relation to the profit warning of the results
of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2019. The
Company would like to clarify that the actual loss attributable
to owners of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2019 is amounted to HK$7.9 million, which is less than the
expected amount stated in the Profit Warning Announcements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

CLARIFICATION TO PROFIT WARNING
ANNOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

The Board would like to emphasize that the information
contained in the Profit Warning Announcements was based
on the preliminary assessment by the Board of the Group's
unaudited consolidated management accounts for the vyear
ended 31st December, 2019 and the latest information
available to the Board up to the date of the Profit Warning
Announcements. Due to the outbreak of coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) since January 2020, more time had been required
to gather the financial information of the Group's subsidiaries
in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") subsidiaries
(the “Subsidiaries”) by the Company. The operations of the
Subsidiaries returned to normal in mid-March 2020. Subsequent
to the issue of the Profit Warning Announcements and on 26th
March, 2020, the Company noted that a deferred tax credit of
approximately HK$21.5 million was recorded for the annual tax
losses incurred by the Subsidiaries, release of withholding tax
in relation to the undistributed earnings of the Subsidiaries and
reversal of deferred tax expense. As a result of such deferred
tax credit which was an information not available to the Board at
the time of issuing the Profit Warning Announcements, there is
a discrepancy between the expected loss attributable to owners
of the Company stated in the Profit Warning Announcements
and the actual loss attributable to owners of the Company.

Without taking into account the deferred tax credit, the Group
would record a loss after Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
Enterprise Income Tax of approximately HK$22.9 million for the
year ended 31st December, 2019.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2019, the Group employed a total
workforce of around 1,000 full time staff (2018: 1,050).
Competitive remuneration packages were offered to employees.
The Group may also grant share options and discretionary
bonuses to eligible employees based on the performance of the
Group and individuals.

BREEAMZBEE

EEeEtnl BNESAMAEERDERE

CHAEEHRZ_T—NFT_A=+—BLFE
PAEEREAEERBEZOSTE  UREER
FzE mAPrEEgaArEaHER - ARE
ZEZERF-ANKREEHE TR ES (COVID-19) -
AAREEFZRBRREAEERPEAR LR
(FRERDZHBAR(HBRARDNMBER - WE
REIMEBER T _TF=-ATAMELS - K
HENZEENFEARE-_S_EF=A=+8 "
ARREBEIWBAGIEENFEHIEEE - Hf
BB RATIADRANBENBENN 2 B K RELT
Tl I 2 2 B B %15 R JE B 1B 3K %2 49 421,500,000
BT HRZELERBEE HEMBFEE QM
EEQELEBSNEE Al BHAENZESAM
R AARBBEATEREGEBEREARGEAE A
ERELEBEZEGEEER -

HE"Z-NFE+-_A=1+—BILFE TEARFRE
EHBEENBERT ANEBESEEFGSH LT
EFT5 1% B 1822,900,000% 7T °

ANEIR

R-ZE—AF+_A=+—HB AEEERLAL
1,000 2B 8 T (ZF —N\F:1,050%8) - XEEM
BERMBABRFNZHFMN IR - AEEIRETGE
LERERNBIEATAEKES  BE 2 £ &R
AEERBAZRBEMET -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 57, is the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the business development
and overall corporate planning of the Group. Mr. Hui has over
35 years of experience in the corrugated packaging industry in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui
did not hold any other directorship in companies listed in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 53, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hui has joined the
Group since its establishment and is responsible for the strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group. Mr. Hui has
over 33 years of experience in the corrugated packaging industry
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (chairman of
the Board and executive Director of the Company). Mr. Hui did
not hold any other directorship in companies listed in Hong Kong
or overseas in the last 3 years.

Ms. Hui Yuen Li, aged 49, is an executive Director, the chief
financial officer, the company secretary and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Ms. Hui is responsible for the financial management
of the Group. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms.
Hui worked in an international accounting firm prior to joining
the Group in May 1997.

Ms. Hui obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts with Honours in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1992. Ms.
Hui did not have any relationship with any Directors, substantial
shareholders and senior management of the Company. Ms. Hui
did not hold any other directorship in companies listed in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chee is a practising Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong and a senior partner of Chee Chan & Co., a firm
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chee had worked in two
international accounting firms in Canada and Hong Kong. Mr.
Chee is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada.

Mr. Chee obtained a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) with Honours from Birmingham University
in 1984. Mr. Chee did not have any relationship with any
Directors, substantial shareholders and senior management of
the Company. Mr. Chee did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 72, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience
in enterprise management and manufacturing operation
management. Mr. Wong is a shareholder and a director of a
metal ware manufacturing company with manufacturing plant
located in the PRC.

Mr. Wong did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Chau Suk Ming, aged 62, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chau is a retired businessman with more than 15
years of experience in the corrugated packaging industry. Mr.
Chau was a shareholder and a director of a corrugated packaging
company with manufacturing plant located in the PRC.

Mr. Chau did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Mr. Chau did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsui Yung Wai, aged 57, is the general manager of
the Group. Mr. Tsui is responsible for the supervision of
procurement, logistics and human resources of the Group. Mr.
Tsui has over 24 years of experience in corrugated packaging
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to joining the Group
in February 2008, Mr. Tsui was a shareholder and a director of
a corrugated packaging company.

Mr. Tsui is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (chairman of
the Board and executive Director of the Company) and Mr. Hui
Sum Tai (executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company).

Ms. Wong Yuk Kwan, aged 48, is the senior accounting and
administrative manager of the Group. Ms. Wong is responsible
for overseeing accounting operations of the Group. Ms. Wong
obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration
majoring in accounting from the University of Houston -
Downtown in the United States in 1994. Ms. Wong worked in
an international accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May
2002.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group's annual report for the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies
and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of the Company's
corporate government practices.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework
and has established a set of policies and procedures based on
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Such
policies and procedures provide the infrastructure for enhancing
the Board's ability to implement governance and exercise proper
oversight on business conduct and affairs of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2019, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for code provisions
A.2.1, B.1.2 and C.3.3.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“"Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
"Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors,

consisting of

three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Hui Sum Ping
Hui Sum Tai
Hui Yuen Li

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Member
of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chee Man Sang, Eric Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Wong Chu Leung

Chau Suk Ming

the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee

Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee

Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed under
“Management Profile” on pages 11 to 13.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning and leadership of the Board and business

development.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the

Company’s strategic planning and daily management and
operations generally.

The Board considers that the responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are clear and
distinctive and hence, written terms thereof are not necessary.
This deviates from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Director

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of around two years, subject to
renewal after the expiry of the current term.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Company's Articles
of Association provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’'s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
Such induction shall be supplemented by visits to the Company's
key plant sites and meetings with senior management of the
Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development (“CPD") to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors
would be arranged and reading materials on relevant topics
would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant external training courses at
the Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Company
organized two in-house briefings on updates on Listing Rules
and related matters for all Directors. In addition, relevant reading
materials including compliance manual, legal and regulatory
update and seminar handouts have been provided to the
Directors for their reference and studying.

The record of CPD relating to Director’'s duties and regulatory
and business development that have been received by
the Directors for the year ended 31st December, 2019 are
summarized as follows:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
(continued)

Note:
Types of Training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines
and relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange's website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee
is set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, Mr. Wong
Chu Leung and Mr. Chau Suk Ming. Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric
is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness
of the internal audit function, scope of audit and appointment
of external auditor, and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review, in respect
of the year ended 31st December, 2019, the interim and
annual financial results and reports and significant issues on
the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit function, appointment of external
auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works.

Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review the
financial information in its interim report, the Audit Committee
has met with the Company’s auditor once to discuss matters
arising from the audit of the Company's annual results and other
matters the auditor may wish to raise during the year ended 31st
December, 2019. This deviates from the code provision C.3.3
of the CG Code which stipulates that the audit committee must
meet, at least twice a year, with company’s auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely
Ms. Hui Yuen Li, Executive Director, Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric,
Mr. Wong Chu Leung and Mr. Chau Suk Ming, Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year to
review the Directors’ remuneration policy and structure of the
Company, and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management is
attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. This deviates from the code provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code which stipulates that the remuneration committee
should make recommendations to the board on company's
policy and structure for all the directors’ and senior management
remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31st December, 2019
are set out below:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely
Ms. Hui Yuen Li, Executive Director, Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric,
Mr. Wong Chu Leung and Mr. Chau Suk Ming, Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee would consider a number of aspects
as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them
to the Board for adoption.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The particulars of the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company are set out as follows:

1. The Nomination Committee will review annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

2. In reviewing and assessing the Board diversity, a number
of aspects and factors will be considered, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience.

3. The Nomination Committee will discuss and where
necessary, agree on the measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board and make
recommendation to the Board for adoption.

4. The Nomination Committee will assess regularly the
diversity profile of the Board and the progress on achieving
diversity objectives, if any.

5. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy as appropriate and recommend revisions, if any, to
the Board for consideration and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Director Nomination Policy
in order to (i) set out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company;
(i) ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the Company; and (iii) ensure the Board continuity and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered:

° Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

o Independency.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a director.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company's business, succession plan, etc.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee will evaluate the
candidates based on the prescribed criteria, rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where applicable)
and recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship, as applicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Director Nomination Policy (continued)

4. For re-election of retiring director, the Nomination
Committee will review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring director and the
level of participation and performance on the Board,
determine whether the retiring director continues to
meet the prescribed criteria and make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of
director at the general meeting.

5. The Nomination Committee will review regularly the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted for selection and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy and business needs.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and CPD of the Directors and
the senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and Employee Written
Guidelines, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31st December, 2019 is set out in
the table below:

s emseipa
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/EEHE

Annual

Audit Remuneration = Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

BExns BEEg® ENZEg® FMzES REZEE RRBEKE

Hui Sum Ping HARTE 717 N/A TEA N/A 138 F N/A 138 F A

Hui Sum Tai AR 77 NATDER NATER NATER 11

Hui Yuen Li 18 # 77 N/A TER 11 1 11

Chee Man Sang, Eric MR AE 4/7 3/3 171 171 171

Wong Chu Leung =k 4/7 3/3 1/1 1/1 111

Chau Suk Ming' &R AR 47 3/3 A 171 A

Yip Kwok Kwan? Eehok N/A 38 F N/A 138 A N/A 138 F N/A 138 F N/A T8 F
1. Mr. Chau Suk Ming was appointed as an Independent Non- 1. ARBEEEZTABIIATESE BTN

executive Director with effect from 1st January, 2019 and
became a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 12th January,
2019

2. Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and the chairman of the Nomination Committee on
12th January, 2019

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors have attended the annual
general meeting to gain and develop a balanced understanding
of the view of shareholders.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions including project management, sales and leasing,
financial reporting, human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments conduct internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business
of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/
department.

The management, in coordination with division/department
heads, assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress,
and has reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has reported to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31st December,
2019.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as
the management report, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls, for the year ended 31st December, 2019,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and
relevant resources.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company's Directors, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.
Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 66 to 72.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable/paid to the external
auditor of the Group, Deloitte, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31st December, 2019 is
set out below:

Service Category
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (continued)
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the
shareholders of the Company to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company under the Company's Articles
of Association and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meeting may refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written
requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are published on the
Company's website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Workshops E, F and H, 22nd Floor

Superluck Industrial Centre (Phase 2)

No. 57 Sha Tsui Road and

Nos. 30-38 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chief Executive Officer/
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2414 5508

Email: hopfung@hopfunggroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their
delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, there was no
significant change in the Company's constitutional documents
and these documents are available on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to code
provision E.1.5 of the CG Code which aims at setting out the
principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in
relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company as
follows:

o In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its
working capital requirements and future growth as well as
its shareholder value.

o The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

o The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject
to the Articles of Association of the Company and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out
below.

ERREBEBRREERE

ARBRE BRRRSERER HRERERES
MAERINARREEHAEEEBRANKBEBEE
REE -ARARABNRFBEBRRZEOYEFE - LE
EEBRRBAFAERAEMBRRAE -

SR 2RBBYUFATESLRAEEERZR
GEIR(FREZIRRIBHERRBEFRS &
R BB @EREZIRA

BE_Z-AFT+-A=+—"BIEFE rRAZE

Ne Bt 2% P 48 U o

BB B R

EECCRBOETUHRXFEIRRMBEBE
EERIRARESIHRARTABAREIR K=
DEMAMER/SRRRBRR ZBE - #FIEWT

. EREZLTRBREE  ARAEESENRS
- NENEZEESTR KREEUAR
HERR(EME -

o ARFREIERMIESLE

. RBARREBERAR ABEERZERET
SRR EXESARTREDERETARA
PRI o



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE#& 31

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Dividend Policy (continued)

The Board shall also take into account the following
factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends:

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;
interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

O O O O O O o o

Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
above, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board for a financial year or period:

interim dividend;

final dividend;

special dividend; and

any distribution of net profits that the Board may
deem appropriate.

O O O O

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
shareholders’ approval.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate.

Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert
to the Company in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association.
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RE #HERERKSE

SCOPE

The reporting period for this Environmental, Social and
Governance report of the Group is from 1st January,
2019 to 31st December, 2019. It includes the operations
of the Hong Kong Office (“Hong Kong Office”) and
the factory and office of Green Forest (QingXin) Paper
Industrial Limited (the “Qingyuan Factory”) of the Group.
The business of the Qingyuan Factory includes production
and selling of containerboard (corrugating medium and
linerboard) and corrugated packaging products (corrugated
paper boards and carton boxes). This report is prepared
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company’'s annual general meeting and other general
meetings have provided an effective platform for the
Board of Directors and shareholders to exchange insights.
Apart from general meetings, in order to maintain a close
relationship with the stakeholders, such as clients and
suppliers, the Company would seek the opinions and
understand the needs of the stakeholders through visits,
telephone conferences, e-mails, follow-ups from customer
service, questionnaires and other ways on a regular basis.
The Group's overall performance would also be reported
to the investors through this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

3.1 Environment

The Group endeavors to minimize energy
consumption through its operation, reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and waste emission in
order to minimize its impact on the environment.
The Group strengthens its management in energy
conservation and emission reduction and infiltrated
such practices into its various operation.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. RE HEREARXRR(E)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BIR(#E)
3.1.1 Emissions 3.1.1 #HKY
Non-Hazardous Waste Minimization WL EZEEY

Minimizing waste generation from its source
and, reusing and recycling waste before
disposal are the principles addressed by the
Group’s waste management policy.

As for waste control, in order to minimize
environmental impact, the Group devotes
itself to reducing waste. The Qingyuan
factory has established a set of fixed control
procedures for wastes, and has required each
department to assort wastes for collection
and store any wastes generated. The recycled
wastes including scrap metal, scrap pallets,
scrap powder bag and waste plastic barrel
are collected and reprocessed by qualified
licensed collectors. In addition, the factory has
collected coal ash from boilers, providing it to
cement and brick factories as raw material to
reduce non-hazardous wastes.

Hazardous Waste Minimization

In dealing with hazardous wastes, monitoring
of the use of chemicals is of utmost
importance to the Group. The Qingyuan
factory has established a set of monitoring
procedures for the use of hazardous
chemicals. The purchase of hazardous
chemicals should be based on the actual
needs of production orders. They should be
delivered in batches to prevent over-buying,
which will lead to backlogs of inventory. The
number of purchases of hazardous chemicals
in 2019 was at approximately the same level
as in 2018.

The Group has strictly implemented the
“Cleaner Production Promotion Law"” of the
People’s Republic of China and the relevant
provisions which increase the efficiency of the
utilization rate of resources, reduce and avoid
the generation of pollutants and protect and
improve the environment. In the procurement
of raw materials, non-toxic, harmless and
environmentally friendly materials should
be selected to minimize the generation of
hazardous waste.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARAREE)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BE(E)
3.1.1 Emissions (continued) 3.1.1 #HHY(E)
The Group has demonstrated the following EREE LR DBEEYHBRE R
results in the reporting period through the Bt SERTHEHENTIE
implementation of the aforementioned policies EE

and measures for waste reduction:
Figure | —

Total Annual Emissions (tonnes)

F B 48 PE B (W)

2019 2018
Types of Wastes BEYES —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Hazardous Waste BERBRED 3 3
Non-hazardous Waste mEEEY 367 347

Waste Intensity per Employee

(tonnes/person)
EHEBNEEREL
BEYNRE (W A)
2019 2018

Type of Waste BEEYES —ZE-hEF —E-N\EF
Hazardous Waste EEEEY 0.01 0.01
Non-hazardous Waste mERBEREY 0.63 0.59
Reduction in Atmospheric Emissions LXK Y
The main source of gas emissions for SETZENREHRYIRERIE
the Group comes from the boilers which BEMER TEZREEE —4
mainly consist of soot, sulfur dioxide and bW AREY - FE - £SEKEA
nitrogen oxide. In the meantime, the Group TTRREMEES RERERY R
utilized a variety of technologies to control MEERNEREER R EZELE
the gas emissions: exhaust gas from boiler M AR - B ER
combustion is passed to the Wet Flue Gas A — & b AR - R SNCR L AE 32 i
Spray Tower for magnesium desulfurization BREREI/y: UHRBRERBE
to minimize the sulfur dioxide in the flue gas; BERAHEE -

SNCR denitrification technology is adopted to
minimize nitrogen oxide; and the soot from
flue gas is minimized through bag filters.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARARR(E)

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BIE(E)

3.1.1 HHY(E)

3.1.1 Emissions (continued)

Reduction in Atmospheric Emissions
(continued)

Through these measures, the Group ensures
that atmospheric emission controls meet the
national emissions requirements.

Reduction Emission of Greenhouse Gases
(“GHG")

Reduction of Business Trip

The Group understands that business trips
increase energy consumption and lead to an
increase in GHG emissions. The group uses
other effective means of communication
to reduce GHG emissions that arise from
additional traffic, including using phone and/
or video conferencing, and encouraging
employees to use public transport.

During the reporting period, the number of
business trips was increased as the Group
had located a site in Southeast Asia for
pulp production to solve the problem of raw
materials shortage.

Procurement from Local Suppliers

Under the same business conditions (e.g.
cost, quality, technology and services,
environmental and other factors), the Group
would give priority to local suppliers to reduce
delivery distance and its resulting carbon
emissions.

Control of Indoor Air Quality

Smoking is prohibited in the Qingyuan factory
and the offices to maintain good air quality.
The Hong Kong office has been equipped with
air freshening machine and ventilation system
to improve air quality.

LR R (%)
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARAREE)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BE(E)
3.1.1 Emissions (continued) 3.1.1 #HY (&)

Reduction Emission of Greenhouse Gases LB ERE (R ERE]) K
(“GHG") (continued) (&)
During the reporting period, the Group RmEPHE  EEHREZHERAEH
has strictly complied with the relevant REREEH UYEEXRRRZE
environmental protection regulations and Bl - RFEERAZERENRERERL
no violation of environmental protection BERRE T

regulations was found. The sources and
emission volumes of GHG generated during
the period were as follows:

Figure Il =
Amount
HE
2019 2018

GHG Emissions Sources BERE KRR —ZE-hEF —ET-N\F
Diesel fuel consumption from & & [& & /& # 4 m 08 & (FH)

stationary sources (litres) 197,132 384,381
Gasoline consumption from KEREIRE S HEERE ()

mobile sources (litres) 23,639 25,150
Business travel by EEEZR(AER)

passenger (km) 241,206 89,183
Coal consumption from R E B E IR KK OEE

stationary sources (tonnes) (188 ) 112,444 114,315
Diesel oil consumption from & & 7 8 & &9 45 m 08 &% (FH)

mobile sources (litres) 3,955 4,644
Electricity consumption by HEBEEE(TRE)

facilities (kWh) 52,796 50,681
Total GHG emissions BERBHRAE

(tonnes carbon dioxide (W_FtmEE

equivalent (“t CO2e")) (s tREE]) 174,542 182,822
GHG emission intensity THEBNEERMELRE

per employee REBEREE

(t CO2e/person) (M—F{BmER A) 296 31

3.1.2 Use of Resources 312 EFREH

The Group’s business belongs to green SEXBERGZECEE  BEUHMEE
industry. Thus considerable attention is paid to EREBEREREAERERRLERN
environmental protection to ensure reasonable aBRREMRER -

and efficient use of energy and resources.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE#% 37

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERHRE

3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

RE HERERRR(E)

3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BIE(E)

312 EREHE)

3.1.2 Use of Resources (continued)

Energy Conservation Measure

Basically, the Group is only equipped with
low-power electrical equipment with less
power consumption to reduce carbon
emission. In the procurement process of
electrical appliances, priority is given to
energy-saving products such as refrigerators
and washing machines which had grade 1
label of energy-saving logos.

Gradually all light bulbs have been replaced by
LED luminaires to reduce energy consumption.
They also reduce the generation of harmful
waste by replacing traditional luminaires
with shorter life cycle. According to the
energy saving policies, lighting devices, air-
conditioners and printers are temporarily
switched off during lunch time to preserve
energy.

Furthermore, the air-conditioning system has
been set to operate only during business
hours with temperature maintained at a
reasonable level (e.g. 25 degrees Celsius).
Energy consumption in 2019 was at
approximately the same level as in 2018.
Apart from facility control, energy-saving
slogans have been posted at office entrances.

Water Conservation Measure

With regard to the use of water resources,
the Group has carried out regular inspection
to reduce water consumption. At the
same time it formulates monitoring control
whereby abnormal water consumption will be
investigated. Water conservation slogans are
also posted to raise employee awareness of
water conservation and to remind employees
and visitors to conserve water.

BOR)BE IR 15 b
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RENRE  WRDBBER - £F
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

RE HERERRR(E)

3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BIE(E)

312 EREHE)

3.1.2 Use of Resources (continued)

Water Conservation Measure (continued)

In the process of manufacturing
containerboard, lots of wastes and useful
fibers would be extracted from waste
paper. Parts of the useful fibers would be
retained in water (“White Water”). The
Group has adopted the reuse of White Water
at the Qingyuan Factory. After processing
through the White Water recycling system,
wastewater reaching the standards would
be returned to the production lines for use
in order to minimize wastewater generation
and water consumption. Moreover, it has also
been equipped with effective wastewater
treatment technique, anaerobic digestion.
With this facility and technology, the Group
has greatly reduced water consumption and
hazardous substance in the wastewater.
The thermal power station is equipped with
cooling system so that condensed water could
be recycled for the boiler use. Technological
upgrade to the facilities has increased the rate
of reusing water and reduced the volume of
wastewater emission.

Office Resource Conservation

The Group actively promotes electronic
documentation to implement the concept of
a paperless office. Computer files are used
instead of hardcopies to reduce the use of
paper in offices. The Group also encourages
employees to adopt other recognized
management practices to avoid excessive use
of resources by the Hong Kong and Qingyuan
offices such as (1) re-usable eating utensils
instead of disposable ones, (2) using single-side
printed paper as draft paper, (3) encouraging
double-side printing, (4) collecting waste office
paper for recycling, and (5) collecting and
returning empty ink cartridges to the qualified
license suppliers for recycling. Concurrently,
those scrap paper and confidential documents
must be shredded and stored at the recycling
station, and finally passed to the qualified
license recyclers on a regular basis.

B4 K 15 bt (HE)
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3.

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.1 Environment (continued)
3.1.2 Use of Resources (continued)
During the reporting period, the key resources

consumed in the Group's operations were
summarized as follows:

R HERERHRE

RE HERERRR(E

31 BIE(E)
312 EREHE)

RBEMER EEEHRRNEE
BRBAMT

Figure 1l E=
Total Annual Consumption
FEHAEREE
2019 2018

Resources ER —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Electricity (kWh) BN (TR 52,796 50,681
Water (cubic metre) (37 K) 2,399,407 2,597,587
Packaging materials (plastic) B (R (M)

(tonne) 17 19
Packaging materials (others) B AR (CH M) (188)

(tonne) 563 565
Figure IV 0T

Consumption Intensity
per employee
BNEEFYERERE
2019 2018

Resources BiR —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Electricity (kWh/person) (Note 1) B H(F R 8~ A) (M 1) 89.48 86.19
Water (cubic metre/person) KOLFHKN) 4,066.79 4,417.66
Packaging materials (plastic) BEYE (BEHMWE N)

(tonne/person) 0.03 0.03
Packaging materials (others) B EY R (EAh) (B A)

(tonne/person) 0.95 0.96
Note: B 5 -
1. The data of electricity consumption only 1. NEZENERETDRINEE S

refers to the volume of purchases from
outsiders. The Group mainly generates
electricity from coal (refer to figure Il)

(28 -)
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3.

£

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.1

Environment (continued)

3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands the concerns of
our society on environmental issues; thus,
it has implemented the following green
manufacturing and green procurement policies:

Green Procurement Policy

In Qingyuan factory, as the main material for
production is recycled waste paper, it should
be non-toxic and non-hazardous. The Group
requires suppliers to provide a Restriction of
Hazardous Substances (ROHS) test report
annually to ensure that their products meet
the environmental protection requirement.

Green Manufacturing Policy

The Group is committed to reducing its impact
on the environment and natural resources. The
Qingyuan factory has been accredited with
ISO 14001 certification for its environmental
management system, and continuously
improves its management of the environment.
Various exhausts, wastewater, solid wastes
and noises from the production sites have
been strictly controlled by government laws
and regulations.

In addition, Qingyuan factory has set up a
safety and environmental incident emergency
rescue team for safety and environmental
incident issue, and has conducted different
emergency drills. It has also established
contingency plans with corresponding
emergency preparations and responses
dealing with emergency to cope with various
urgent environmental safety incidents.
Furthermore, in delivering or storing hazardous
solid wastes, it has strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Standard for Pollution
Control on Hazardous Waste Storage”
published by the government and relevant
administrative measures on hazardous waste
transfer to prevent pollution.

3.
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Apart from complying with the local
employment regulations, the Group has
formulated relevant employment policies to
ensure employees are treated in a fair and
reasonable manner.

Recruitment and Promotion
The Group ensures that the recruitment

process is in compliance with the legislation
and free from discrimination. All candidates

3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE #HBREARARR(A)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.1 Environment (continued) 31 BE(E)
3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources 313 BEREALER(E)

(continued)
Green manufacturing Policy (continued) AL ERE(E)
Concurrently, the Group is also equipped with B SEITTREEMTHEKESE
specialized facilities for wastewater treatment. B WY THRERNISRAYEE
And it has also established clear pollutant FOETIEXEEE  BTHRKER
treatments and operating instructions which R AL RF WD -
monitor the facilities on real-time basis and
record the results in detail.
The Group would carry out regular inspections EE MmN E S5 R H EE
on the key pollution control facilities to EITEEMER - REBEREMHES
ensure its normal operation. According to BT RBE(PEAR KM IRE
the provisions of the Law of Environmental REEX) EEHEEMNERSE
Protection of the People’s Republic of China, RETTREZENE  TERREH
the Group makes environmental impact TR TE « BERUSIREZ R
assessment on construction projects in FMBSAMEIRFEEERTE -
the Qingyuan factory and strictly complies
with government emission regulations.
All pollutants after processing have been
discharged in standards.

3.2 Society 32 #HE

3.2.1 Employment 3.21 EF

BT 38 ST & A (B R OE AR ESS)
SETHFTHEENREBRE - RE
REESAFAEMNGFE -

HERE T

SEERBEEFNAZERRER
BRE - - MERBEDFEHE -
BEPREELER Rk -#Hg

have been treated equally. During recruitment, BE- - BxR-E00 - BK - MH -
it has been stipulated to prohibit discrimination EEmE - BRI - Fik DK

against factors such as race, ethnicity, social
class, nation, religion, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, age, membership
in trade union or political party.

BEKEEAZNER -
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARARR(E)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued) 3.2 HE(#&)

3.2.1 Employment (continued) 321 EFE(E)

Recruitment and Promotion (continued)

Employees would be promoted in accordance
with the Group’'s rules and regulations,
through fair and impartial performance
appraisal, to ensure equal opportunities for
promotion.

Compensation and Welfare

The Group pays compensation and welfare to
employees in strict compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, including the statutory
minimum wages, legal calculation for overtime
compensation, social insurance paid for
employees, statutory holidays, paid annual
leave and paid maternal leave.

In addition, whenever compensation to the
employee at work is required, the Group
would implement in strict compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

Employee Benefits

Employees would be entitled to insurance,
medical benefits, share options as well as
discretionary bonus. The Group offers holiday
benefits to employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
make any legal violation or discrimination.

HREREH (B)

EEBBHEENREHE  FB
AEAENHRERETE - 1A
RREAREEFEHE -
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)
3.2.1 Employment (continued)
As of 31st December, 2019, the total

number and distribution of employees were
summarized as below:

3.

RE HERERRR(E)

32 #Hg(#&)

321 EFE(E)

RZFE-NF+ZA=+—H &

SHBE D HERM

e

Figure V il
Number of Employees
EEHE

2019 2018
Gender % Bl —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Male EE) s 482 476
Female o 108 112
Employment Type EEE R
Full Time 28 590 588
Part Time ¥ 0 0
Age group FHeA R
18-24 18224 41 50
25-34 26334 188 207
35-44 35%44 176 166
45-54 45554 150 135
55-64 55%F 64 33 29
>65 >65 2 1
Total 5t 590 588
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)

3.2.1 Employment (continued)

3.

RE HERERRR(E)

32 #Hg(#&)

321 EFE(E)

The Group has implemented an occupational
health and safety management system
which takes different measures to minimize
the occurrence of occupational illness and
industrial injury.

Occupational Health and Safety Policy

The Group has formulated a set of safety
production management, including first-aid
and self-help knowledge after the occurrence
of an accident. In the Qingyuan factory, it has
set up a safety team and provided three levels
of safety training on regular basis namely
Factory Level, Departmental Level and Group
Level which are led by the departmental heads
and safety officers.

Figure VI N
Average Monthly Employee
Turnover Rate (%)
B REERKE(%)
Average
T E
2019 2018
Gender % 51 —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Male B 4.29 3.19
Female M 417 4.46
Average
FiE
2019 2018
Age group F e 4 Bl —E-NF —E-N\F
18-24 18224 10.98 8.50
25-34 26234 5.98 4.99
3b-44 36844 3.36 2.11
45-54 452354 211 1.30
55-64 55%64 1.01 0.86
>65 >65 0 0
Overall Average BERYIHE 4.27 3.43
3.2.2 Health and Safety 322 BREHZE

SEHERBEREL2EERE
EATAMEEREBRERRTE
KL -

SEFI T ER2EEEE B
RELEHFRNEIMENBHE
B EBEBKLTE2/)E X
EHRHE=RZ 25 - BIRA
B RIIAR  YHEAMPIAE
AR 2 EERE -
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARARR(E)

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued) 3.2 H&E(#&)

3.2.2 Health and Safety (continued) 322 BEHZ 2 ()

Occupational Health and Safety Policy
(continued)

In addition, the Qingyuan Factory is equipped
with a fire engine for safety purpose. Apart
from this, it also installs CCTV in various
locations such as warehouse, materials
storage to reduce the risk from any accident.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group assesses safety risks in the
workplaces and formulated corresponding
operating rules to manage the health and
safety hazards posed to employees as
follows:

1. Operating procedures are set up for all
level positions, for example, regulations
of operations management for safe work
in confined space and the procedures
for machinery to protect the safety of
employees;

2. Safety officers would regularly inspect
fire protection facilities and safety
facilities to ensure they can function

properly;

3. Protective equipment is provided to
employees such as mask, earplugs,
plastic gloves and anti-smashing shoes;

4. Emergency exits are kept clean to
prevent obstruction.

BERERZ KK (E)

o BERRE2ERE  BEBRER
T—8HEDE - Rtz KEE
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)

3.2.2 Health and Safety (continued)

Employee Safety Training

The Group provides suitable training to ensure
effective implementation of operating rules
and safe operation of equipment. Moreover,
all new employees must take training in
knowledge of safety. The Qingyuan Factory
also arranges fire and emergency drills on a
regular basis to ensure employees are familiar
with procedures when dealing with accidents.

Work-life Balance Management

The Group emphasizes on employee work-life
balance and has regularly organized different
activities for employees after work. There are
recreational facilities in Qingyuan factory like
sports ground, gardens, billiard room, table
tennis room and karaoke room.

During the reporting period, 214 working
hours were lost due to work injuries and no
work-related fatality was identified. We have
strictly abided by the related safety regulations
and there were no cases of prosecution due
to violation of related occupational safety
regulations.

3.
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)

3.2.3 Development and Training

Career Development Policy

The Group has established comprehensive
training system that covers factory’s rules
and regulations, product workmanship,
environmental protection and the relevant
safety training. In addition, the Group
emphasizes practical experiences and thus
arranges team leaders, group leaders or
experienced employees to guide new recruits
in their work.

During the reporting period, the total number
of employees attended training and the

3.
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total number of training hours provided to N
employees were summarized as follows:
Figure VII +
Total number of
trained employees
Z2mEINEERE
2019 2018

Gender % 5l —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Male EE) s 650 682
Female o 91 118
Employee Category EEDE
Senior Management SREIRE 2 2
Middle Management FiEE R 5 10
Supervisor *E 3 35

General Staff —fETL

731 753
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. B HEREARRR(E)
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.2 Society (continued) 3.2 HE(#&)
3.2.3 Development and Training (continued) 3.23 BREREH(E)
Career Development Policy (continued) BFEERKE(E)
Figure VIII VAN

Total number of training hours
completed by employees (Hours)

& 8 58 & 3% 3| B9 48 B B (4 B)

2019 2018
Gender % Bl —ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Male B 1,557 1,607
Female o 251 513
Employee Category EEDE
Senior Management BREIRE 65 75
Middle Management FEE R 107 159
Supervisor *FE 88 384
General Staff —mRE8L 1,548 1,502
During the reporting period, the total number RBEPHE - E@B2NMFINEE
of employees attended training was 741 and WY RINELZEERTHKMNIE
the total number of training hours provided to 42 H 51,808/ N - KRBT
employees was 1,808. The average training B T 15 G s B 40 B2 44/ N B o

hours for each employee were around 2.44
hours.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)

3.2.4

3.2.5

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the employment
of child labour and only employs individuals
aged 18 or above. The Group also ensures no
forced labour occurs.

During the reporting period, there was no
reported case of child labour or forced labour.

Supply Chain Management
Supplier’s Code of Conduct

The Group has developed various codes of
conduct which are communicated to suppliers
of the Group, to assure product quality.
Prohibition on waste paper being mixed with
hazardous wastes would minimize the impact
on environment.

In addition, the Group has established a set of
code of practices in selecting suppliers. After
evaluation of factors such as product quality,
price, environmental protection and social
responsibility performance, the suppliers with
the highest performance-to-price ratio and the
best overall performance would be selected.
Besides, the Group has also established
evaluation system for evaluation beyond
commercial interest. The system evaluates
qualification of new suppliers and performance
of existing key suppliers on regular basis.
Evaluations are carried out in the form of
on-site audits and/or document reviews on
qualification and compliance.
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3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)

3.2.5 Supply Chain Management (continued)

As of 31st December, 2019, the geographical
distribution of the Group's suppliers was as
follows:

Figure IX

3.

RE HERERRR(E)

3.2 #HE(#E)
325 REHEE®E(Z)
RZZE—NAF+ZA=+—-H &
Bt EEA B M T
h

Number of Suppliers

HEFEE

The Group has stringent criteria in monitoring
production process. The quality of semi-
finished products and finished products are
examined. Moreover, the Group ensures
workers to operate carefully during the
production process to avoid defective products
being delivered to the market.

Product Safety Policy

For assuring product safety, the finished
products must pass through the final
inspection and testing before releasing to the
market.

2019 2018
Geographical location i 38y B —E-NEF —E-N\F
PRC A 220 190
Others H A 20 17
Total et 240 207
3.2.6 Product Responsibility 326 EREF
Quality Assurance Policy EBEEREKEK

SEEEZELEBRRETABRRBNR
o YHmERMmBARSRER
Bt EEBRRIAELEEBS
BPEEEEX UEETREMM

BT o
ERE2BE

AREERRR  RQERBTS
A1 4 7B 45 0B B AR AR R ORI -
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)

3.2 Society (continued)

3.2.6

3.2.7

Product Responsibility (continued)
Fair Marketing Policy

The Group's salespersons are required to
disseminate information on the recognized
competitive advantage only when promoting
the products. Negative description of
competitors is not allowed so as to avoid
misleading customers.

After-sales Service Policy

Customer service officers and salespersons
would make after-sales visits to customers
on a regular basis. The Group would obtain
comments for improvement according to
results of customer’s satisfaction survey
and would follow up after-sales issues
immediately. If there are severe product
quality issues, the Group would recall the
defective products from the market.

During the reporting year, the Group received
66 (2018: 38) complaints in relation to product
quality.

Privacy Protection of Consumer’s Information

Personal information of customers would
properly be maintained by the Group. Relevant
information has been stored at the internal
specific department. Moreover, customer
information can only be accessed by the
authorized personnel. No one is allowed to
make own copies of or store privately or get
the customer information out of the offices
without permission.

The Group has strictly abided by relevant
regulations, and no violation of product
responsibility or privacy were found during the
reporting period.

Anti-corruption
Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has set up different
committees, such as audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration
committee, striving to maintain high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard
shareholders rights and interests, as well as
the Group's value and accountability.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 3. BE HEREARARR(E)

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (continued)
3.2 Society (continued) 3.2 HE(#&)

3.2.7 Anti-corruption (continued) 327 REF(4#E)

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group has supervised the behavior of
operating personnel in order to safeguard
employees’ legal rights and corporate
interests. In addition, the Group welcomes
employees to report any non-compliance and
dishonest behavior. The privacy of relevant
employees who report the issues would be
protected.

Financial Auditing

The Group engages Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the independent third-party auditor to audit
the Group’s financial accounts. This ensures
that the Group's accounts are clear and
accurate, and the interests of shareholders are
protected.

Declaration on Conflict of Interest

The Group stipulates that all employees must
declare the conflict of interests. Directors and
senior management are prohibited to transact
any securities of the Group during sensitive
periods.

Prevention of Corruption, Extortion and Fraud

The Group has established comprehensive
system for internal control and formulated
a set of strict policies, which prevent
malpractices and unethical business practices,
and also avoid the occurrence of corruption
and other fraudulent behaviours.

The Group has strictly complied with the
regulations on anti-corruption. No violations
of any provisions were found in the reporting
period.

3.2.8 Community Investment

The Group has actively participated in the
community including donating funds and
materials to charitable organizations.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

A business review of the Group, with description of the principal
risks and uncertainties and the likely future development, are
set out in chairman’s statement, management discussion and
analysis on pages 4 to 10, this directors’ report on pages 53 to
65, and in notes 4, 5, 28, 29, 31, 32 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 73.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the years from 2015 to 2019 is set out on page 160.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of the movement in the share premium and reserves
of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group's reserves available
for distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$765,800,000
(2018: HK$732,687,000), being the aggregation of share
premium, special reserve and retained profits.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Chairman
Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Hui Yuen Li, Chief Financial Officer

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric

Mr. Wong Chu Leung

Mr. Chau Suk Ming (appointed on 1st January, 2019)
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan (resigned on 12th January, 2019)

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Mr. Hui Sum Tai and Mr. Wong
Chu Leung shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Chau Suk Ming was appointed by the Board as a new
Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 1st
January, 2019 and he will hold directorship until 31st March,
2021. Further, each of the Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term commencing from 8th
March, 2019 to 31st March, 2021, which may be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either

party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received, from the Independent Non-
executive Directors, annual confirmations of their independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in Management Profile on pages 11
to 13.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's
share options during the year:
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ARBCEEBIYFNTEESRELTRUMREE

UMERZFERRE - ARAR R BIULIFEARTT
EEHR/RBIAL

ARREZERSREEEERABHNRENEIBAEZ
EEERE -
B
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TREBAAABRERENZ B

Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding

price per at beginning during during during at end of
Category Option type Date of grant share  of the year the year the year the year the year
g5l EREERE RUEAH BROKE FOSKGTH FR&EW ERTE FREH FRERTHR

(Note) HK$
Gk B
Directors
Es
Mr. Hui Sum Ping G 15.10.2018 0.435 7,968,000 - (3,984,000) — 3,984,000
HRFRE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai G 15.10.2018 0.435 7,968,000 - (3,984,000) — 3,984,000
HARERE
Ms. Hui Yuen Li G 15.10.2018 0.435 7,968,000 - (3,984,000) — 3,984,000
FRGEIE G
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric G 15.10.2018 0.435 1,000,000 - (500,000) — 500,000
MRERE
Mr. Wong Chu Leung G 15.10.2018 0.435 1,000,000 - — — 1,000,000
BhRAE
25,904,000 —  (12,452,000) — 13,452,000

Other employees G 15.10.2018 0.435 16,736,000 - (8,368,000) (200,000) 8,168,000
HitES
Total for all categories 42,640,000 — (20,820,000 (200,000) 21,620,000

2R A
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Note:

The vesting period of the share options granted is determined by
Directors at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share

options granted under the Company’s share option scheme may only
exercise their options during the exercisable periods as follows:

Granted under scheme

BREGE)
GEE
5L MR A 2 9 B R 5 A PR BT -

REBEREABTERESAAETNUTITEBITER
H BB

BB ER N

Option type G Maximum % of share options exercisable

GEBRE ATEEREZES AL

1.5.2019 - 30.4.2020 up to 50%
&= A #50%

1.5.2020 - 30.4.2021 up to 75% (to the extent not already exercised)
Bxim Al E75% (A RITHEEBR)

1.5.2021 — 30.4.2026 up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

=& A E100% (A M ARITEEAR)

As at 31st December, 2019, the total number of new shares
which might be issued upon exercise of the options that had
been granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was
21,620,000 new shares, representing approximately 2.64% of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

RZEBE-AF+ZRA=+—-H REFIERLE
BRARTTENBREETERRAIEETHRMNE
#7321,620,0008 - IEARB R ZADHITRD O
2.64% -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EERKRD NHERORGEZz2EDS

As at 31st December, 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code | :
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were

RZBE-AF+ZA=+—H ERAQFAREES
EBEHEG(TEZRPEHEN ] FI2HHE2REER
ZERMATE  ARBLEHTETAERTETES
RHOMBETRENEARARBRIAE  EFN
ARBRAEMBZEB(ERRBZFRBEHEMEXV
Iz MEAROREFTHRAEZEDE AR N

as follows:
(a) Shares (a)
Approximate
percentage
Company/ of issued
Name of associated Number and class of  share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity securities HEBITRA
BExns APR/HBEEEE 56 REHERER BMABEDH
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 125,134,681 shares 15.30%
HHRTEE /NG| ExnBEEA Long position
125,134,6810% % 17
TR
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 107,755,400 shares 13.17%
HHRTEE ViN/NE trust/interest of controlled  Long position (Note 1)
corporations 107,755,400 % Bz 10
2EZEILAS o & (fF 1)
XEmEERER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Interest of spouse 19,754,000 shares 2.41%
HHRTEE /NG| B Long position
19,754,000 % f& 13
HE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 150,556,430 shares 18.41%
HRERE FiN/N ExBEAAN Long position
150,556,430 % i 17
HE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of spouse 5,110,000 shares 0.62%
HRERE FiN/N BB 2 %= Long position

5,110,000 i {7
HE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EERARD  HERORESF2ERZ(E
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) M (£&)
Approximate
percentage
Company/ of issued
Name of associated Number and class of  share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity securities HEBTRA
BExpng ARQF/HELEERE 56 EEBEARER BHES
Ms. Hui Yuen Li Company Beneficial owner 4,064,000 shares 0.49%
A+ /NS ERBEAA Long position
4,064,000% % 13
Sy
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric Company Beneficial owner 596,000 shares 0.07%
mRELE VNN ExnBEEA Long position
596,000 % % 15
59}
Mr. Chau Suk Ming Company Beneficial owner 180,000 shares 0.02%
B AR %k £ VAN/NE] BERBEBA Long position
180,000 % K& 7
e
Mr. Chau Suk Ming Company Interest of spouse 1,553,007 shares 0.18%
JE AR o A ViN/NE] B8 2 =& Long position
1,553,007 % f& 15
e
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Gong Ming Hop Fung Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
HRTEE Paper Ware Factory trust/interest of controlled  deferred shares of
Limited (“Hop Fung corporations/short position ~ HK$1 each
GM") of controlled corporations Long and short
NPERGLBABERDR 2RIETELIAS positions (Note 2)
=20 XmrEEn/ 3,000,0000% & & &
XEERKE BT ERRE
B IE R
HARKE
(B 5E2)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Short position of a controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
HRREE = WN corporation deferred shares of

REEEKE

HK$1 each

Long and short

positions (Note 2)
3,000,000 § R &

BT ERERE

i E R

HAERKAR

(PH £ 2)



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(a)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

The 107,755,400 shares are owned by Goldspeed Holdings
Limited (“Goldspeed”). Goldspeed is wholly owned by
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”) and
Goldkeen is wholly owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited ("HSBC") in its capacity as the trustee of HSP
2004 Family Trust, a discretionary trust the founder of
which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the discretionary objects
of which include family members of Mr. Hui Sum Ping.
Accordingly, Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested
in the 107,755,400 shares under the SFO.

Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and therefore
an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop Fung GM is
HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary shares of HK$1
each and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1
each. The 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1
each in Hop Fung GM are beneficially owned by Hop
Fung Group (HK) Limited (“Hop Fung Group HK") which is
owned as to 50% and 50% by Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr.
Hui Sum Tai respectively.

Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Mr. Hui Sum
Tai is deemed to be interested in the non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, an option to purchase from them such
3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in
Hop Fung GM. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum Ping and
Mr. Hui Sum Tai is deemed to have a short position in the
underlying shares of the option granted under the option
deed pursuant to the SFO.
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5%107,755,4000% f% 15 B Goldspeed Holdings
Limited ([Goldspeed]) # & ° Goldspeed i
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(b) Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’ interests in
share options of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Share Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31st December, 2019, the following shareholders had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company:

ESRKRG  HEROREZZERE(E

(b) FEEREE

EELRFEZHEALRARRBRE 2 #a
HBEHNAREEAE] -5 -
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Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
issued share issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held options held Note(s) capital
BEERT P HEBITRE
BREB R 514 RHEE BRERE B &£ BRBESL
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner/founder of a 252,644,081 3,984,000 1, 2 31.38%
HHRFLEE discretionary trust/interest of
controlled corporations/interest of
spouse
EnBlAAN2HEEFTEALAS
ERREEER / RBzER
Goldspeed Beneficial owner 107,755,400 - 2 13.17%
BEmEAA
Goldkeen Interest of a controlled corporation 107,755,400 - 2 13.17%
Xy EEER
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust 107,755,400 - 2 13.17%
2REETEZTEA
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Beneficial owner/interest of spouse 155,666,430 3,984,000 3 19.52%
AL E EanlAAN BREBzZER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner/interest of spouse 171,227,882 - 4 20.94%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

1. Of 256,628,081 total shares, Ms. Jian Jian Yi is directly
interested in 19,754,000 shares and is deemed to be interested
in 236,874,081 shares of the Company under the SFO as she
is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Ping, a Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

2. The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Goldkeen
in its capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping
and the discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Goldspeed, Goldkeen,
HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the
107,755,400 shares under the SFO.

3. Of 159,650,430 total shares, Ms. Leung Pui Man is directly
interested in 5,110,000 shares and is deemed to be interested
in 154,540,430 shares of the Company under the SFO as she
is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Tai, a Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

4. Of 171,227,882 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested in
750,000 shares and is deemed to be interested in 170,477,882
shares of the Company under the SFO as she is the spouse of
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year ended 31st December, 2019.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors, and any of their
respective associates were granted any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such right
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates were
interested in any business apart from the Group’s business, that
competes or competed or are or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time
during the year ended 31st December, 2019 and up to the date
of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company’s business was entered into or existed
during 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 167(1) of the Company's Articles of
Association, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred by him or her in the execution and discharge
of his or her duties.

The Company maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance during 2019 and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the vyear, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2019, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for around 26% of the Group’s revenue.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 42% of the
Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 12% of the
Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company's share capital has any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not enter into any related party
transactions or continuing related party transactions which fall
under the definition of “Connected Transaction” or “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which shall oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$74,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors strive to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The corporate governance principles of
the Company emphasise the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders.
The Company has met the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2019, except with
the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

o Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing.

° There are no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Directors consider that the responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are
clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof are
not necessary.

Code Provision B.1.2

. A deviation from the code provision B.1.2 is that the
Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews
and makes recommendations to the Directors on the
remuneration packages of the Directors only but not the
senior management.

° Currently, the remuneration of the senior management
is attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive

Officer of the Company.

Code Provision C.3.3

° Code provision C.3.3 stipulates that the audit committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company's
auditor.

° Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review

the financial information in its interim report, the Audit
Committee has met with the Company's auditor once
a year to discuss matters arising from the audit of the
Company's annual results and other matters the auditor
may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has met with
the Company's auditor once during the year ended 31st
December, 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving continuous improvement
in environmental performance and complying with the
relevant environmental protection regulations and rules. 100%
wastepaper (old containerboard cardboard) is used by the Group
for producing containerboard in the upstream business.

Environmental protection measures are implemented by the
Group to minimize the impact on the environment. Two of the
manufacturing facilities of the Group have been accredited with
the 1SO14001 certification for its environmental management
system.

The environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report
of the Group disclosing detailed discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance are prepared in
accordance with Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange. The
ESG report is disclosed in this Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the
public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor of the
Company since its incorporation.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Ping
Chairman
27th March, 2020
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 73 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December, 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter
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Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment
relating to the containerboard segment

We identified the impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment relating to the containerboard segment as a key
audit matter due to its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the involvement of significant
judgements and assumptions in estimating the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which property, plant and
equipment belong to.

With reference to the financial performance and unfavourable
market condition noted, the management considered that
impairment indicators of certain property, plant and equipment
relating to the containerboard segment existed as at 31st
December, 2019. Accordingly, the management assessed
whether there was any impairment of the property, plant and
equipment relating to the containerboard segment at 31st
December, 2019 by preparing a value-in-use calculation to
determine the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the property, plant and equipment belong to. The value-
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment relating
to the containerboard segment for which the management
have performed impairment assessment as at 31st December,
2019 are HK$1,309,954,000, as disclosed in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) ERERSHE(Z)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter AREMTEERBEPNAEEBREEREE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment on  AZEMITHEEREDBEBRODE  BMERK
property, plant and equipment relating to the containerboard & & H 8 EE T (& 12 F B 1E ¢

segment included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’'s process o
and basis adopted in preparing the cash flow forecast,
including significant assumptions;

° Challenging the key assumptions adopted by the o
management, including growth rates and gross margin,
by referring to the industry information and the
management’s budget;

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the cash flow forecast by e
comparing against historical performance and discussing
with the management on revenue growth strategies and
cost initiatives in respect of the cash generating units;

° Engaging our valuation specialists to evaluate the °
appropriateness of the key assumptions used in the
impairment assessment, in particular the discount rate;
and

° Performing sensitivity analysis in respect of the growth o
rate, gross margin and discount rate to assess the extent
of impact on the calculation of the value-in-use.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

18 M LA ¥
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M % AT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit in the
independent auditor’s report is Lui Chi Wang.

resulting

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27th March, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReEakHEtEZEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BE-F— A&+ A=+—HIEE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZE—)N\F

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 FHET FAT

Revenue Uz 5 1,194,082 1,423,860

Cost of sales RSB (1,078,828) (1,223,626)

Gross profit X 115,254 200,234

Other income Hi g A 6 20,584 21,191

Other gains and losses H it gz & g5 1B (2,297) (7,563)
Impairment loss under expected credit FEHIEEHEE X TH

loss model BB & 1B (551) —

Selling and distribution costs HER D HK AR (45,689) (51,176)

Administrative expenses THHAX (83,662) (92,471)

Other expenses H i fA % (18,168) (23,665)

Finance costs B 765 B 72N 7 (6,189) (4,832)

(Loss) profit before taxation T B (B 1) A1) B (20,718) 41,718

Income tax credit (expense) Frefi& % () 8 12,799 (11,246)

(Loss) profit for the year, attributable to ANATHEHF A EEEE

owners of the Company (&5 18) A B 9 (7,919) 30,472
Other comprehensive expense for FEHMEER::
the year:
Item that may be reclassified HE#AEET D2
subsequently to profit or loss: Bazm Z2IHE -
Exchange differences arising from MEGINERE 2 E
translation of foreign operations HER (24,774) (57,209)

Total comprehensive expense for the year, XA BB A EEFE

attributable to owners of the Company 2 M X 2 %8 (32,693) (26,737)
HK cents HK cents
AL Al

(Loss) earnings per share TR (EE) & 12
— basic — HEAR (0.98) 3.82

— diluted — #E (0.98) 3.81




74 HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% %m#ZRERA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
R-F—AF+=—F=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHE T
Non-current assets InBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BERZE 13 1,343,204 1,394,531
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 28,765 —
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights £ i {f AEFENTHE
RIA 15 - 21,000
Deposits paid for the acquisition of BEYWE BERZE
property, plant and equipment Fr &l & 63,790 —
1,435,759 1,415,531
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 93,861 258,661
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e W R IE 17 168,833 174,875
Deposits and prepayments e RIERRK 6,518 20,363
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights £ i {f AEENHE
K 15 — 549
Bank balances and cash WITHBRES 18 292,299 219,398
561,511 673,846
Current liabilities RBRE
Trade, bills and other payables % TTF&,H\WEFEH
IR 19 180,655 232,030
Taxation payable FEAS 08 3,133 12,666
Lease liabilities HEGE 20 7,832 —
Unsecured bank borrowings IR ITEE 21 183,263 166,333
374,883 411,029
Net current assets RBEERE 186,628 262,817
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABER 1,622,387 1,678,348
Capital and reserves IR AR 7 15
Share capital [N 22 81,764 79,682
Reserves i 1,449,519 1,470,540
Total equity, attributable to owners of &2 T H A FE{L £ 3%
the Company HWEE 1,531,283 1,550,222
Non-current liabilities nBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 20 311 =
Unsecured bank borrowings IR E 21 33,593 54,722
Deferred taxation iR AE 7% 18 23 57,200 73,404
91,104 128,126
1,622,387 1,678,348
The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 169 were MRE73E1LIB X KA BKHREER - E-_TF=A
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on —++ H & & =& & & 5 ?X?E IET?'J%%
27th March, 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: REREE:
HUI SUM PING & 7 ¥ HUI SUM TAI & # %=

DIRECTOR £ % DIRECTOR Z %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AEEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BR2=—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE

Share
Share Share Special Translation options  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BA  BROBE HRGKkE EXRE BREGE KREAE M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET THERT FAT FAET THERT FAT
(note)
(M%)
At 1st January, 2018 R=ZZE—-N\&—HA—H 79,682 481,258 (107,444) 47,997 — 1,136,820 1,638,313
Profit for the year EE A = = = = — 30,472 30,472
Exchange differences arising from MEBINEBZEN
translation of foreign operations =% — — — (57,209) — — (57,209)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FE 2 @ (5 37) I 25 @5
for the year — — — (57,209) — 30,472 (26,737)
Recognition of equity-settled share- & 72 A A% # &5 & LA R 15
based payments TR zZ = = = = 2,392 = 2,392
2017 special and final dividends paid EBEff=Z—tF &5 K&
RS = — = = — (63,746) (63,746)
At 31st December, 2018 RZT—N\&F
+-—A=+-—8 79,682 481,258 (107,444) (9,212) 2,392 1,103,546 1,550,222
Loss for the year FEEAR — — — — — (7,919) (7,919)
Exchange differences arising from BREBIEBZER
translation of foreign operations =5 = = = (24,774) = = (24,774)
Total comprehensive expense for the FE 2 HH X @5
year — — — (24,774) - (7,919) (32,693)
Recognition of equity-settled share- & 58 LA % 4 &5 & LA A% 15
based payments TRt zEH = = = — 4,697 = 4,697
Exercise of share options 1710 BB AR 4 2,082 6,975 = = = — 9,057
Transfer upon exercise of share options & 17 {5 % A% # i & % = 4,159 = = (4,159) = =
At 31st December, 2019 RZT—NF
+-—A=+—8 81,764 492,392 (107,444) (33,986) 2,930 1,095,627 1,531,283
Note: Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of  FfisE: HFRIFEE AR R R E QR 2 & & K 7 8Kt B

investments in subsidiaries of the Company and the aggregate
of the
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired as a result of the group reorganisation in
2003.

amount of the non-voting deferred share capital

ARAERERELERABBELR _ZTE=F5E
EEAMBBZMBAR ZRAHEE 5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

mMERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE-F-NE+-A=+—HIFEE

FLOWS

Operating activities
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Allowance for inventories
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Release of prepaid lease payments on land

use rights
Interest income

(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Share-based payment expense

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and other
receivables

Decrease (increase) in deposits and
prepayments

(Decrease) increase in trade, bills and other
payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Income tax refunded

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Deposits paid for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

REEY
i 0 (&5 18) F8
RAEH AT %
B 7 B 2R
FREE
BZREMREREER
MmE BERRETE

ERREENE

ROt AERNEE
/R

M B YA

HEWX BB RR
(25 ) B 18

AR D 32 A5 2 32 i

7 &R 4 (38 on)

B 5 K H it & 4 R IR R
(1 m)

we kBN FORD (E )

B9 B RAMENKE
() 2 n

LEELECZRE
EBN PSR
iR O P15 Bt

RETHEECHSFRE

REED

WEME BEERRBEN
o

WENE BELRMHE

B A E

HEWE MERRBME

IR

REFHEAZREFER

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
(20,718) 41,718
6,189 4,832

- 1,413

551 —
86,379 86,594
8,507 —

- 574
(2,226) (1,992)
(108) 1,307
4,697 2,392
83,271 136,838
164,713 (113,580)
5,289 (3,442)
2,674 (1,404)
(48,313) 4,936
207,634 23,348
(1,784) (2,869)
- 35
205,850 20,514
(63,790) =
(60,456) (146,563)
2,226 1,992
158 1,070
(121,862) (143,501)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BR2=—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE

Financing activities

Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of other bank borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Interest on bank borrowings paid
Interest on lease liabilities paid

New bank loans raised

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
Dividend paid

Other bank borrowings drawn

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31st December
represented by bank balances and cash

MEED
EERITER
EEEMBITEE
EEMEERE
ENRITEEMNE
ENEHERBENE
g IR 1T B
BITE BB ATEHA
Ef kA
REREMBRITEE

MEFHEAZREER
RERBEEEBMORD) FE

R—B-—BRERBEELEE
ExgFoTE

Rt=RA=t+—~H
RERREEE
RITERRRE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
(100,192) (103,303)
(45,000) (83,656)
(7,931) —
(6,059) (4,832)
(130) —
141,401 184,882
9,057 —

- (63,746)

- 61,933
(8,854) (8,722)
75,134 (131,709)
219,398 335,541
(2,233) 15,566
292,299 219,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A AR MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

1.

BE-F-NE+-A=+—HIFEE

GENERAL

Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of the registered office of the Company is disclosed under
Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 35.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23  Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015 = 2017 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the above
new and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
("HKAS 17") and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1st
January, 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1st January, 2019.

As at 1st January, 2019, the Group recognised lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE—E—NFfT_HA="1—HIFEF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

2=

2.

—E-NFF A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16"”) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as an
alternative of impairment review; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied is 3%.

2.

ERFIREEIEEMBREER
TERUBREERDE

BERMBHELENF6RAE([FBEH
B|mEERE165% ) (F)

ERARBA(E)

RBERERET BN B RS EIE165KIAE TH
RETEPTER  AEBRZBAHEEERR
EARBEBEEGAENFIIR D BRELEHEE
BREHAESNHMNEERRAUTATEER
A

KEEAEEGERNEI7RIEE X
RBELRIAREEHEAREFTZNENR
HE HAEHERTBEE K

i. RYKEABMFAEEAREERMR
VB BEEKA -

REMDBEAREHEZHERRHEERE
B AEBEEERARVAERABEREEE
BHWEEEFRNE - rEAAMEFHEEE
A K B3% e

At 1st January,
2019
R=F—N%F

—A—H
HK$'000
FTERT

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at

W= \F+-A=+—BHEM

31st December, 2018 K B E 7,601
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental RZZE—NF—A—BHHEESER

borrowing rates as at 1st January, 2019 A1 = g A F R 1T AE3R 7,503
Analysed as EAT BB #EIT T

Current mE 7,503

Non-current FE 7 B -

7,503




ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE##% 81

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at Tst
January, 2019 comprises the following:

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BE-F— A&+ A=+—HIEE

FE R # 5] R AR E] &8 B 1 3R &5 % A
(TEBMBREENDGE
ERUBREEAE6RBAEI(EFEH
B EERE165% ) (F)

1ERAMA ()

—E- G- A-BERREENREERSE
AT -

Right-of-use
assets
FEREEE
HKS'000
F# T

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases JEARABR B IEMEERFE16 It
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 KEHERANEREEE 7,503
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments (note) HESHEERBET D E ) 21,549
29,052

Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") for own used properties
were classified as prepaid lease payments on land use
rights as at 31st December, 2018. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the current and non-current portion of
prepaid lease payments on land use rights amounting
to HK$549,000 and HK$21,000,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 “Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments”

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 sets out how to determine the
accounting tax position when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The interpretation requires the
Group to determine whether uncertain tax positions are
assessed separately or as a group and assess whether it
is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment used, or proposed to be used, by individual
group entities in their respective income tax filings. If it is
probable, the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect
of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 “Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments” (Continued)

The Group applied this interpretation retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the interpretation
recognised at the date of initial application, 1st January,
2019, without restating comparatives. Based on the
assessment made by the directors of the Company, the
application of this interpretation has had no material impact
on the Group's retained profits and tax provision as at 1st
January, 2019 and for the current year.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1st January,
2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, “the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards”, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs and the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition
of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgments. In particular, the
amendments:

o include the concept of "“obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users”
rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1st January, 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:
o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and an
equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance on how
to select a measurement basis for a particular asset
or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined financial
statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to
the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still
referred to the previous versions of the framework.
These amendments are effective for the Group for annual
period beginning on or after 1st January, 2020. Other
than specific standards which still refer to the previous
versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the
New Framework on its effective date in determining the
accounting policies especially for transactions, events or
conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 "Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1st
January, 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS
16), and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

3.
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3.

BE-F-NE+-A=+—HIFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

3.

FEEHBRA)
Boh - BB BRETME - AFENERBEAT

EfENBARBNIEREERAFEFE
MBABBUEERNBERIUESIBERE & -
BE_RAE=F FHELOT:

. F-RBABBELERNFERA AR
BHHEREEXRBERERT S ZRE
(RIERE)

. F_BBANBBREEEXRRBENERS
RMZEMAER 2B AR (E-RABHE
BN - R

« FoRBABBRAERRENTAR
28 ABIE -

TEEABRHEINRTX
mEEE

BANBREEAAARZAAT RENK B
RREH BB BHRE - EADTF A
TEEE - AN BRE EHE

. LB EREBREN:

. F2ARERASEBEMARTEDRZ
BRNTATRE R EN R

. AHREETERBROINFTERLLOR -

HEBERBRBEREXAR=AEHEREE
h-ERZEAE  AAKESEMARENA
ZHI IR E T o

MEBRARAZEAEABRRAKRERSAERIELR
A2 EH R YRAREREEHNE
REIZEGIERRILE - ARWE  FAMKE
FHEMBRAR ZWARBX A RNEBIRG
EHliEz BMEAGEERREMEEKE
R BEASETEEHNEHEMNBARZAH
ALk



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FRE#% 87

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service, being at the point the goods are delivered to
the customer. Delivery occurs when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location.

3.
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3.

BE-F-NE+-A=+—HIFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in
time. Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15,
revenue from manufacturing and sales of containerboard
and corrugated packaging products to the Group's
customers are recognised when the goods are passed
to the customers, which is the point of time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the goods
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the goods.

Variable consideration

For transactions that contain variable consideration, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled using either (a) the expected value method
or (b) the most likely amount, depending on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, including contract for
acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:
o the lease term has changed or there is a change in

the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review in
which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1st January, 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A AR MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE-F-NE+-A=+—HIFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEGTHEE)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment ME- BERRE
Property, plant and equipment including leasehold M- BELEZEEBEEEXTHRASEM

land and buildings held for use in the production or
for administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress as described below, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
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can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is ﬁﬁ)\,ﬁaﬁﬁi«‘%fﬂ C R ER A B RS AR R R TE
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “right- REEEERER ﬁﬁ‘kﬁﬁ%ﬁg,ﬁu £1657 18 ) 3%
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid [+ Hb{F AR &8 (BB T B IR

lease payments on land use rights” (before application
of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated
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reliably between non-lease building element and undivided & o

interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire

properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost BRYE BEAZEER(EEZIEZRIINZ
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than WEDLREBEEMGAERFH Rtk EMGEE
construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives BEEE - WEREHEERAE - B ERF

and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate assets belong,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated to the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating up of cash-generating units) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customer which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liabilities
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liabilities, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, other receivables and bank balances).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors that are credit-impaired and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics by
reference to past default experience and current past due
status of the debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(ii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower,;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

o Nature of financial instruments; and
o Past-due status.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade, bills and other payables
and unsecured bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before taxation
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxation entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be used by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale
is included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme"”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment relating to the
containerboard segment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value-in-use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units to which the assets belong. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates, the growth rates or gross margin in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment relating to the
containerboard segment (Continued)

As at 31st December, 2019, in view of impairment
indicators, the management of the Group performed
impairment assessment on the property, plant and
equipment relating to the containerboard segment with
a carrying amount of HK$1,309,954,000 as at 31st
December, 2019 and determined that no impairment loss
is required. Further details are set out in note 13.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant
and equipment (Note 13) with respect to depreciation,
the directors of the Company estimate the useful lives
of various categories of property, plant and equipment
according to their experiences over the usage of property,
plant and equipment and also by reference to the relevant
industrial norm. The useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed annually. If the expectations
differ from the previous estimates, the changes will be
accounted for prospectively as changes in accounting
estimates.

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the directors of the
Company would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values based on latest market
prices and current economic conditions. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowance. If conditions which have an impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/improve,
additional allowances/reversal of allowances already made
may be required.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 31st December,
2019 was HK$93,861,000 (net of allowance for inventories
of HK$1,956,000) (2018: HK$258,661,000 (net of
allowance for inventories of HK$1,989,000)).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. In addition, the Group uses provision matrix
to calculate ECL for the trade receivables that are not
credit-impaired. The provision rates are based on past due
status as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is grouped based on
past default experience and current past due status of the
debtors. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’'s trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 32 and 17 respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by type of goods is
as follows:

T HBEZE 2 EERIRE

EZRUNRERBFEBERR®E

EEREEZREFEBEMNARREEERE
FOAREME « UbOh AR B ABRERAFEL
AHBACEERENEZRUFENEREEES
B BELXDREARBER  MERUEBIE
BANTRABEKZAESA - BERXDRERE
BANBEENERLBMZIHMBERDAE - 1
EREAY BABRIMNENLXEETF
ERAEEERETUES -

EHEEEERERS IR ATETMTE - @
REHEEBBEBEAEEZE S EKRRIENE R
DRI M sE32 17 FE o

WEkoHER

EFENBBNDHF

4

SERERERNKBEINET

IR AR 3H &
EBEBERHEE

Sales of containerboard
Sales of corrugated packaging

The Group applies the practical expedient that information
regarding the transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers is not
disclosed as the original expected duration of the contracts
is less than one year.

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
573,716 553,617
620,366 870,243
1,194,082 1,423,860

AEBERERBENDE  BROEERTFER
TRABRNEENXZERNER BRAH
WRERHABR LR —F HATFRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information

The Group's manufacturing operations are located in the
PRC.

The Group's operations are organised based on the type of
products. Information reported to the executive directors
of the Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is analysed based on
the type of products. No operating segments identified by
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’'s reportable and operating
segments are categorised into the manufacture and sale
of:

o Containerboard — corrugating medium and linerboard

o Corrugated packaging — corrugated paper boards
and carton boxes

Information regarding the above segments is reported
below.

5.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE-F—NF+=A=+—HIFE
Wik D BER(E)

2 & & B

AEBZHERBMRFAE -
AEEZEBNREMBERNED - LERD AR
RFfoMRBARNARBARTES(IETEL
BREE(XTBEERRENERZENTIE

EmBRHONT - AEBZAZ2HN M - LEH
TELERRECHNNEENHMESEZR -

o TR A — RS R R

. EF 8K -RBRIRLXEHE

ER LD HMZEHMERNT X
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDBER(E)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEMER(E)
Segment revenues and results DY REE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and LTAEREERANZFRD S D2 AEE W=
results by operating and reportable segments: ES -Gkl
For the year ended 31st December, 2019 HEZT-—hhEF+A=+—HLEFE
Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations Consolidated
FRE RESEL 2BAG %8 mE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTERT TERT TERT TERT
REVENUE Iy &
External sales HINEE 573,716 620,366 1,194,082 - 1,194,082
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE 295,292 - 295,292 (295,292) -
Total FE 869,008 620,366 1,489,374 (295,292) 1,194,082
RESULT E¥
Segment profit 7 2 Fl 7 3,900 6,826 10,726 - 10,726

Central administrative & R {TE 5 %
expenses (25,255)
Finance costs B 75 B AR (6,189)

Loss before taxation TR 1B (20,718)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2018

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BR2=—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE

5. WHEKDHER(E)

DEWER(E)
DA e R FEAE(E)
BHE-_T - \F+-A=+—HLLEE

Corrugated Segment

Containerboard  Packaging total Eliminations ~ Consolidated
ERE REBRE SHEEH % 85 o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHIT FHIT FHIT
REVENUE Iy =
External sales o HE 553,617 870,243 1,423,860 = 1,423,860
Inter-segment sales DEEEE 412,818 = 412,818 (412,818) —
Total FE 966,435 870,243 1,836,678 (412,818) 1,423,860
RESULT E
Segment profit 2 2D Kl 63,238 15,790 79,028 = 79,028
Central administrative ~ R T X
expenses (32,478)
Finance costs Bt 7 A AR (4,832)
Profit before taxation %% A Al /& 41,718

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the
reportable segment information are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administrative
expenses and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
No revenue from any single customer during the year

contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
for both years.

RUEAZBOBENRRAB 2 SRR EN T
B AEE G BRAR -

DEWAMBRERES S MAMBRZAE - BERDE
FRITEASRFBERAR - IR D EEIRR
HERAMERGCEIBEERREZNE -

DEHEEEN2RETHEFE -

RAEFERN SBETAE-FTPRFRAZEK
D ERBEARNEE WS EFEI0% °
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDBER(E)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEMER(E)
Other segment information Bt 7 56 & #
For the year ended 31st December, 2019 HEZT-—hhEF+A=+—HLEFE
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit: AEOHMNERBRE SR
Corrugated
Containerboard packaging Total
R AR EEa% et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TET TET
Interest income A B WA (681) (1,545) (2,226)
Depreciation of property, plant and %)% « BMEMRE 2 ITE
equipment 77,324 9,055 86,379
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEZEE 2T E 1,284 7,223 8,507
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZFT—NF+ZA=+—HILFE
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit: FESHANERBEZEE
Corrugated
Containerboard packaging Total
8 iR 4 JER RS HET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Interest income FLE A (1,386) (606) (1,992)
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ % - BMEMZXBEZITE
equipment 76,462 10,192 86,594

Release of prepaid lease payments # el + b {F FEFENEE
on land use rights RIE 510 64 574
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDBER(E)

(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about (i) the
Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
delivery destination of the goods and (ii) the Group’s non-
current assets by location of assets:

DEWER(E)

TREJNEFHONAEERERINBENLE D
Z MR P U R K (i) A 5 B R B BE P AE i [ 8
DZHERBDEEZERM:

Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
SR EF Wz FRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-RF —E-N\F —E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET THET FET

PRC H
Hong Kong BB
Macau P
Southeast Asia R

Segment assets and liabilities

The measure of the segment reporting of the Group
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment does not include

1,194,082 1,423,860 1,349,732 1,392,481

- — 20,338 21,634

- — 1,899 1,416

- — 63,790 —

1,194,082 1,423,860 1,435,759 1,415,531
PHEERRME

AERETREERREFERDE KRN
ZAZARERE D IR ERW B AEME E R
BE- Bl YEREIDMEERAE -

any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets

and liabilities are presented.
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HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 &£®EZRERA A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMW A
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHE T
Other income includes: HE il ABIE -
Interest income A B A 2,226 1,992
Scrap sales BEmiHE 1,058 611
Service income B %5 Ug A 9,695 9,413
Sundry income (note) 3 TE WA (B 7)) 7,605 9,175
20,584 21,191
Note: Amount as at 31st December, 2018, included an one- We: RZFE—/\F+ZA=1+—"H ZaELHE
off subsidy received by one of the Company’'s PRC ARA—HFAERBRARIEME SN EN
subsidiaries for qualifying as a High and New-Tech B S K — £ 806,209,000 T (=2
Enterprise amounting to HK$6,209,000 (2019: nil). —NFE) -
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAX
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TE T FH& T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZHE 6,059 4,832
Interest on lease liabilities HEAaGZFE 130 —
6,189 4,832
8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 8. FIB8HUER)EX
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TH&T
Current tax: B EA 7% 18 :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBFER 1,970 417
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FESEMRED 186 2,413
PRC withholding tax A TR 0 R 1,249 —
3,405 2,830
Deferred tax (note 23) i & B E (BT 5E23) (16,204) 8,416
(12,799) 11,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued)

On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th March,
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime is insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

A portion of the Group’s profits are earned by the Macau
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated under the Macau
SAR's Offshore Law. Pursuant to the Macau SAR's
Offshore Law, such portion of profits are exempted from
Macau complementary tax, which is currently at 12%
of the profits. Further, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, that portion of the Group's profit is not
at present subject to taxation in any other jurisdiction in
which the Group operates.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1st January, 2008 onwards. One of the Company's PRC
subsidiaries was awarded with the High and New — Tech
Enterprise and entitled to preferential rate of 15% for the
Group’s financial year ended 31st December, 2019 and
31st December, 2018.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE-F— A&+ A=+—HIEE
PR s (B %)X (&)

RZE-NF=A-+—H BELEZEREB
“E-EERBUER(ETR) &P E R (5
BIEZR]D  SIAMBHFESHEGIE - KHIE
ERE-NF=ZR-FTN\BEEXRERL
REATEZR - REMBHFESHES - &
B 1% (b % 2 E2,000,000% 7T 4 A 1 #£8.25% <
i & BB - i R 382,000,000 7T 2 % F Al R
16.5% Z R - T1F & M AR B F 1S5 X 5
ERZEBERBZENBEBEIZ165% 28 —
R -

ARREER R - BTGB MRS &P R
MEBEHSAMBRRMSEM - TEFNEH
T3 IR P F 2 b 5T AR TR M H 216.6% 5t & o

7N 5= B 58 o R T i 2N Sk AR 1BOR P 4F BI T R
6B B R R RE M AR AL 2 R P Y B X B P R ER -
RIBIRFIRRIITR R BER AR - 0 MER
AR B (B RTRAE Z212% 8K -
AN RRABEER A - BATA K EZ D A
TN AR AN R B R R P A 2 AT (] B A B A
A AR -

REFECEMBTRE(RERGHRED R
EMRBEBERED BT FN\F—-H—H
B hEMBARZHER25% o ARB M —
BRBENBRARRBE—_E-—NAF+TA=+
—HEZZ-—N\F+ZA=+—HIEAXEEZ
MREEANEZAESMEELRNEERE -
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8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued) 8. MEB#HEEL)BMX(£E)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FEHRBERYEGABEZIMNEMEEmKIRA
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of AEAI(BE)FAEZHERT:

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018
=E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx THETT

(Loss) profit before taxation AT (&5 18) 7 E (20,718) 41,718

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% & & & F 15 §% %£16.5%

(2018: 16.5%) ZZ—)\F :16.5%)
ATE I (3,418) 6,883

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBBAZREZE

purpose (98) (109)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 7~ 8] 1% 5 Sz = i 75 5 £

purpose 1,260 B, 18
Effect of tax different tax rate of the PRC HEK B AR E R 2

subsidiaries A 818 6,226
Effect of tax exemption granted to Macau & P9 B A5 E 2 ¢ 518 2

subsidiaries A (5,107) (7,509)
Tax effect of undistributed earnings of the B E A alARDIK&EF 2

PRC subsidiaries (note 23) 5 75 52 2 (Bt 5£23) (6,089) 765
Others H (165) (165)

Income tax (credit) expense for the year  EE 55 (%) X (12,799) 11,246
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(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FE(EBEBR)ANE
2019 2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at £ Z (E#8) F B2 K
after charging (crediting): (Gt A) R 5 &E :
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERZKEZITNE
equipment 86,379 86,594
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZTE 8,507 —
Release of prepaid lease payments on land @ + b {5 FA 4% ¥8 1 A & &K
use rights 18 - 574
Total depreciation and amortisation meEkBHEBTH 94,886 87,168
Less: Amount included in cost of inventories il : st AR AR X 27 &
recognised as expenses DN (85,950) (80,292)
8,936 6,876
Staff costs BT AR
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EEM < (K 3E10) 17,860 18,193
Other staff HEMmET
— salaries and other allowances — ek HEMEA 77,616 82,803
— retirement benefit scheme — BRI G
contributions 11,559 12,592
— share-based payments — UEHIZHz W 1,844 939
108,879 114,527
Less: Amount included in cost of inventories il : st AR AR X 27 &
recognised as expenses A& B8 (53,284) (56,344)
55,595 58,183
Auditor’s remuneration % B AT BN & 1,685 1,560
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses MR AR X 217 & 5k A& 1,078,828 1,222,213
Exchange losses, net* MEH B FE 2,405 6,256
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and H &% % « B = & & &
equipment* (W) BB (108) 1,307
Write-down of inventories (included in “cost 77 & iy (7t A [#5 & K 2 )
of sales”) - 1,413
Operating lease rental for warehouse and BB N A E WXL L H
office premises EHE - 10,742
& Amounts included in “other gains and losses” line item on L SR AGEERRAMEE KSR H MK
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and mREE W HERBEFEAHMAIEN
other comprehensive income. Comparative figures have D URERFENET -

been reclassified from other expenses to conform with the
current year’'s presentation.
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B2 T NF+—A=1—HIFE
10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

Directors

Other emoluments

10. ESRFETBRAEHE RESZHMH

Hit M &
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2019
Fees benefits contributions  payments Total
&R BAREN URGXM
we Hit g A SRR ZX M B
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Hui Sum Ping THRTRE - 6,836 18 878 7,732
Mr. Hui Sum Tai TRELE - 6,462 18 878 7,358
Ms. Hui Yuen Li EREIE S - 1,069 18 878 1,965
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE:
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric MRAELE 193 - - 110 303
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan (resigned on ERNEERZZ-NE
12th January, 2019) —A+ZBEE) 14 - - - 14
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BRSEE 193 - - 110 303
Mr. Chau Suk Ming (appointed on FARBEE(RZS—NEF
1st January, 2019) —A—BEZT) 185 - - - 185
585 14,367 54 2,854 17,860
Other emoluments
Hifl ¢
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2018
Fees benefits  contributions payments Total
ek RIEEA UBROZH
we HiiEd T8 Z XM ok
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THx TET TET TET
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (resigned on FHRETERZZ-NE
15th August, 2018) NA+HBET) = 2,605 8 = 2,613
Mr. Hui Sum Ping FREEE — 6,455 18 447 6,920
Mr. Hui Sum Tai FRREE = 6,100 18 447 6,565
Ms. Hui Yuen Li A 2L = 984 18 447 1,449
Independent non-executive directors: BUHFHTEE
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric WRERAE 178 = = 56 234
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan EEHEE 178 = = = 178
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BURREE 178 — — 56 234
534 16,144 62 1,453 18,193
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and Group and the independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown were for their
services as directors of the Company. During the year, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office and no director waived any
emoluments.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2018: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments
of the two (2018: one) individuals for the year ended
31st December, 2019 amounted to HK$3,435,000 (2018:
HK$1,288,000), representing salaries and other benefits
of HK$1,643,000 (2018: HK$823,000), retirement benefits
scheme contributions of HK$36,000 (2018: HK$18,000)
and share-based payment of HK$1,756,000 (2018:
HK$447,000), for their services rendered to the Group.
Emoluments paid to the two individuals fell under the band
of HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE—E—NFfT_HA="1—HIFEF

10. ESRFETBRAEMHE RESFHMH

(&

BEx(#)

MARBLTENMBARREZTHRAER REX
MEBEs e BREEHETETHRASRMH
BRGMERZME ©

EXHTAORTESHE IREREELRRE
MAEEEBOREME - FRWBEIERTT
EEME I RFE/ARRRESFTIE MR
Me - FR AEEREXNEAHE TIHE
EEFERBEENMASEREMAREE 2 &
B ERERRMEEDS  TEEEREMTM
[ A

3=

REBRAUERHFMALTHR  Edh=((=F
—NFE: W) ABERRESR  BEZHFHER
ExX#HEHN - BE=FT-AF+=_A=+—HL
FECHTIMUCCZE—NFE: — ) AL 2B
% 43,435,000/ T (= Z — /\ 4 : 1,288,000/8
L) BEBEERAAEERERBAMZEZ
4 K EfhfEF11,643,0008 T (— & — N\ & :
823,000/ 7T) ~ B K & F 51 8 £ 536,000 7T
(ZE—NF:18,0008 L) KA B HIHzx
1,756,000 7T (== —/\4F : 447,000 L) °
S FRAA T2 Bl € 7 F1,000,000% T =
2,000,000 T 48 Bl °
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11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE

2019 2018
—2-n%E = %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THR

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the REEER ADIK Z AR T
Company recognised as distribution during Z @R Z & 5 ¢

the year:
2017 final — HK1.50 cents per share —E—tFRHP—FR
1.50 7% Il - 11,953
2017 special — HK6.50 cents per share —E—LFER — 8K
6.507% Il - 51,793
— 63,746
The directors did not recommend the payment of a final EETERREE_T—LF+=-_A=+—H
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2019, nor has IEFEEIRMNAREBARKRE - B SR &K T
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting Al f% B o
period.
12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BR(EE)ERF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per ARARIHEEANEBGEREARAREE(FE) BT
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based TR TEEGE

on the following data:

2019 2018
ZE-NEF —T)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET

(Loss) earnings (EE) &R
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic and &+ & & I% & 7N & 858 (&5 18)
diluted (loss) earnings per share BFZ(EE)EF (7,919) 30,472
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(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE—E—NFfT_HA="1—HIFEF

12. BR(BR)BF (&)

IR 13 B B

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t & & & & A& (E518) B2 5 2

for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per
share

B A B h0 #E F 15 B

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in BB MGG RE v BE #H ST

respect of share options

B ZEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5T & & % # & (E518) &5 2

for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings
per share

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31st December, 2019 did not assume the exercise
of the Company’s share options as the exercise price of
these options was higher than the average market price
for shares from the date of grant.

R 0 19 8

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
810,513,864 796,824,000
- 2,991,100
810,513,864 799,815,100

HRZEERENTEESRAERHKAHER
RFHME RBE_T-NAF+_H=*
—ALEENERBEEBZAET RAERR
DA ZBREETE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% BMERRXHE

Furniture, Plant,
Factory Leasehold fixtures machinery
premises land and Leasehold and office and Motor Construction
in the PRC  buildings improvements equipment equipment  vehicles in progress Total
B
RER
HELH HENx WAZE HE B3R
PEEE RkEF %6 R &S RE EEIE At
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx THL THL TEr TARn TEr TEn
COST 2%
At 1st January, 2018 “Z-N\5-A-H 464,861 23,102 63,992 18,491 1,618,814 14,97 12,498 2,216,729
Exchange adjustments 5 BB (17,837) (61) (2,160) (426)  (63,335) (228) (84)  (84,131)
Additions Bh 2,605 - 9,924 BRS 27,034 589 100,311 140,996
Reclassification ENNE 847 = 68 = 109,212 = (110,127) =
Disposals HE = = (49) (37) (4,187) (697) = (4,970)
At 31st December, 2018  ZZ—\E+ZA=+—H 450476 23,041 71,775 18561 1,687,538 14,635 2598 2,268,624
Exchange adjustments R (7,229) (25) (911) (174) (26,322) (93) 9 (34,763)
Additions #R = = 1,970 333 18,443 = 36,806 57,552
Reclassification ENAE 846 = 1,027 — 37,125 = (38,998) =
Disposals e = = = (53) (1171) = = (1,224)
At 31st December, 2019 ZF—AFTZA=+—H 444,093 23,016 73,861 18,667 1,715,613 14,542 397 2,290,189
DEPRECIATION il
At 1st January, 2018 —Z-\¥-A-H 191,520 2,093 51,896 14,435 547,446 10,196 — 817,586
Exchange adjustments S (7,653) (30) (1,417) (300) (17,920) (174) —  (27494)
Provided for the year FREEE 18,5672 924 3,682 910 61,051 1,455 = 86,694
Eliminated on disposals HERTH - = (49) (36) (1,819) (689) = (2,593)
At 31st December, 2018  —E—-A\E+ZA=+—-H 202,439 2,987 54,112 15,009 588,758 10,788 — 874,093
Exchange adjustments EHAZ (3,358) (13) (652) (129) (8,083) (78) — (12313
Provided for the year FREEE 17,812 922 5,249 m 60,287 1,398 — 86379
Eliminated on disposals HERTH = = = (30) (1,144) = = (1,174)
At 31st December, 2019  —ZE—-AE+ZA=+—H 216,893 3,896 58,709 15,561 639,818 12,108 — 946,985
CARRYING VALUES REfE
At 31st December, 2019 ZE-AEFTZA=+—-H 227200 19,120 15,152 3106 1,075,795 2,434 397 1,343,204
At 31st December, 2018 ZE—\F+ZA=+—H 248,037 20,054 17,663 3,562 1,098,780 3,847 2,598 1,394,531
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Factory premises in
the PRC

4% or remaining lease term of the
land element, if shorter

Leasehold land and 4% or remaining lease term of the

buildings land element, if shorter
Leasehold 20%

improvements
Furniture, fixtures and 10%

office equipment
Plant, machinery and
equipment
Motor vehicles

3',% - 33'/,%
20%
Impairment assessment

With reference to the financial performance and
unfavourable market condition noted, the management of
the Group concluded there was indication for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units of containerboard
segment and corrugated packaging segment to which
certain property, plant and equipment, with carrying
amounts of HK$1,309,954,000 and HK$30,816,000,
respectively, as at 31st December, 2019. The Group
estimates the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating
units to which the assets belong when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually based on
a value-in-use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units are higher than the carrying amounts
as at 31st December, 2019 and no impairment loss has
been recognised against the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment.

13.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE_FE—NFF-A=+—HIFE
ME- - BMERRE(E)

biimE - BMEERREERB(ERZIRZKINIK

HEERATFEFRITE :

Bl R B 4% 3 T E D 2
AT B (AR
RERE)

HE+THRET 4% 3 T E D 2
AT B (AR
RERE)

HEMEREE 20%

B RERPEAE 10%

=18
B WEREE  3/,%-33%
ot

{8 = £

20%

RE2EFHERARINOTHEMRR  AKEE
BERSFEREFRIL H EBRE DR
EFEERIMEBNE TR BERRME

WBESELEVNA @RS EETRER G
R-ZB-AF+-_A=+—HB BRHEZHA

1,309,954,0007% 7T 30,816,000 7T - & %
BREEAAIRESHEE  ARERKREREE

AEGHEENBREELASBUNAKRE S
B o

BEIHER FEEEREERAN=2Z—N
E+-H= -1— BRGELEBENHAEKSE
SREEE YESRYE BERRENKRE
BERERBERSE -
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14.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FHEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE i HEME ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH& T FH& T
As at 1st January, 2019 R-ZE—-NF—HA—H
Carrying amount BREE 21,549 7,503 29,052
As at 31st December, 2019 R=-ZF-hAF+=-HA=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 20,651 8,114 28,765
For the year ended BE-Z-NE+=ZA=+—
31st December, 2019 HIEFEE
Depreciation charge WEEH 548 7,959 8,507
Total cash outflow for leases HER R HARE 8,061
Additions to right-of-use assets REF FEEE 8,691

For both years, the Group leases certain warehouse
and ancillary office properties for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 2 years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented
separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.

As at 31st December, 2019, included in the Group’'s
right-of-use assets is HK$1,354,000 prepayments under
processing arrangement which represents the prepaid
amount for land use rights.

MER AEERESEHER TRERED
WMOAMPEAETRE HEANTE EMF
WEEHR - HHADAEBAER LR L
= B[R] A9 5K AR o

o REBEEE TIEREERE AL
NIXEBFNEFE AEESZTWERR
(BREAEEELH)NEMEBA - CIRATE
H—RENFANBZEDEES - EEMX
NERBEANESER  Z5BEVENEE
THHATAEBZ7 -

R-E-AE+-A=+—"0 X&£B2FEH
W& E B HE1,354,00058 JT 2 0 T % HE 18 1~
RoAETHWEREZEMNSE -
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PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE 15. ti#hF A BRNEERKE
RIGHTS

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments on AEBE L MFERAEBNEERER
land use rights comprise: &
Land use rights in the PRC LRz £ 3 AR 21,549
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ERMEDN
Non-current assets FEREBEE 21,000
Current assets mENE E 549
21,549
As at 31st December, 2018, included in the R=ZF—N\FE+ZA=+—H sdFAXEEZ
Group's prepaid lease payments on land use rights T+ M5 AR TR Y A & R IE A B $E1,438,000%8
is HK$1,438,000 prepayments under processing TZMIZHBENR AL RELERE
arrangement which represents the prepaid amount under TN EHE -
an operating lease for land use rights.
INVENTORIES 16. 78
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw materials R 64,277 145,796
Work in progress &M 336 767
Finished goods 2 BY @ 29,248 112,098

93,861 258,661
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17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. ESREMERRE

Trade receivables Z 5 R WA

Less: allowance for credit losses

Other receivables (note)

Total trade and other receivables

Note: Balance included a prepaid service fee to an independent
third party amounting to HK$21,403,000, which will be
utilised in year 2020.

The Group allows credit periods ranging from 5 to 120
days to its trade customers which may be extended to
selected trade customers depending on their trade volume
and history of settlement with the Group. The following is
an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
credit losses presented based on the invoice date, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates, at
the end of the reporting period:

WS BB

H i FE 5 70 IR (P 2E)

B 5 K H b FE UL R IH 48 FR

2019 2018
—ZF-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT THET
149,495 176,499
(2,935) (2,433)
146,560 174,066
22,273 809
168,833 174,875

M #HREEINTBYEF=THNEBEAREE
21,403,000 Tt (RS FFH) °

AEBHRTESHEFLEI20BEEH - AAJ LA
BEFETESIRFEAAEE2ES5E RBAR
REBEMTURERZEERS - T ARREH
RERBEZAR(ESAZ M EERABEL
NMKEEEBREBEEMEVNZES BB FKIEZ
B iR DA

Within 30 days 30B A
31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external litigation search to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits on a
customer-by-customer basis. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed monthly. Trade receivables that
are past due relate to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

2019 2018
—®-nE —E-Nf
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi# Tt
146,212 172,181
348 1,480

- 405

146,560 174,066

FEEMER R A - A% E S KA 8RR
BR AHEBREEEPZEEERLAES
EPRECFERE BEZEERBLIRE
FAFELRT -  AMEZRURERIHY &
BN RCHEEFER -



17.

18.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#% 131

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at 31st December, 2019, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate gross
amount of HK$20,061,000 (2018: HK$30,362,000) which
were past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, no balance has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default. Such amount relates
to a number of independent customers that have good
trade and payment records with the Group. There has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the balances are
still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The average age of these receivables is 49 days (2018:
45 days) based on invoice dates.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 32.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash carry interest at prevailing market
rates from 0.001% to 1.350% (2018: 0.001% to 1.250%).

As at 31st December, 2018, bank balances and cash
including time deposit of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,299,000) carried interest at prevailing interest rate
at 2.06% per annum.

Included in the carrying amount of the Group's bank
balances are following amount denominated in currencies
other than functional currency of the relevant group
entities:

17.

18.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE-F— A&+ A=+—HIEE
E5KHMERKEGE)

R-ZE-NF+-_A=+—0 KEBEZEH
J/E U R I A5 B4 R B 15 BR TE (B 42 B8 /520,061,000
7T 2 EW R IE(ZF — A4 : 30,362,000/%8
) ZERERBREBAC A E@HE S
o WEABDEIHIOBEHINA ERIEKRE
B ZEREHZEZNMAESERERTES
ENREHBZBYIRFER ZEEF2EE
BEWEEANE  BAEEREHAIKESR
Bt AEEVERZSEHMBZET WK
& e

RIEBEZEHE  ZERWFIENFHERR 49
B(ZZE—/\F:45H) °

FHESREMERFEREFHZFBIR
B 5E32 ©

ROTERRRE

BITHEBRIRE HIRRITHEF £R0.001% 2
1.350% (ZZ—/)\4F : 0.001% %1.250%) 5T &. °

R-ZE—N\FE+-_A=+—H8 FIT&8LF
SEERBITENR206%E 2 EHRAERA
R #10,000,0007T (#8 & 711,299,000/ 7T) °

AEBRTESHZEREANEEEER 2T
BEEBANNZEETIEMT :

RMB AR
United States dollars (“USD") Zrx(xEx))
Hong Kong dollars BT

2019 2018
—ZF-hE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
34,527 9,057
12,552 5,889
3,116 2,276
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19. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. E5 EBERHEMESKIE
The suppliers of the Group grant credit periods ranging REBEZHERHRON FI0E0EMNEER -
from 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of T ARKERARENZZAHMENZES
trade and bills payables presented based on the invoice FEBREMREZRE ST

date at the end of the reporting period:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Current B B 46,266 86,254
Overdue 1 to 30 days BmH1Z=30H 351 327
Overdue 31 to 60 days B HI31E60H 6 270
Overdue for more than 60 days #H60H N - 825 1,449
Trade and bills payables B REBENFIA 47,448 88,300
Payables for the acquisition of property, BEWXE BMELREZE
plant and equipment < 5IR 16,337 19,207
PRC other tax payables JE 1F FR B EL A 5 1E 27,150 30,215
Other payables and accrued charges (note) Hfth f& 3K 18 & fE 5t >
(PR 35) 89,720 94,308
180,655 232,030
Note: Major items of other payables and accrued charges are fer: HMENREREGSILT  TZHEARE
accrued salaries and wages. e RkIE -
The average credit period on purchases of goods is BEEYMZTFHIEERRAISA(ZZE—NF : 29
33 days (2018: 29 days). The Group has financial risk B - AEEFTAVBRMBREZEE - UERM
management policies in place to ensure that all payables ERENREBEBHEEEHRRNBE °

are within the credit time frame.
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LEASE LIABILITIES 20. HESE
31.12.2019
=E-NF
+=—B=+-—H
HK$°000
FET
Lease liabilities payable: FERFHERE:
Within one year —FR 7,832
Within a period of more than one year but not more than R —F U EFETBBRFEN
two years HA [ A 31
8,143
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months BRABEES R T=EA
shown under current liabilities NEHEESE (7,832)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under REEEEF R 2+ =18 A% 3
non-current liabilities HEEe®E 311
UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 21. BIEKHBITRERE
Unsecured bank borrowings comprise: IR ITEERE:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
Effective interest rate HK$'000 HK$'000
BERA= FE T FE T
Bank loans RITER 2.446% to 3.700%
(2018: 2.152% to
3.418%)
2.446% £3.700%
—E—N\F:2152% %
3.418%) 216,856 176,055
Other bank borrowings HfbiR1TfE E Nil (2018: 3.108% to
3.148%)
E(ZZT—)\F:3.108% %
3.148%) - 45,000
216,856 221,055
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21.

UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 21. BEBRBRITEE(E)
(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Carrying amount repayable*: JEEEREmE*:
Within one year —F R 135,207 123,333
More than one year, but not exceeding —FEBETBBMRE
two years 23,593 40,000
More than two years, but not exceeding T EEBETHBIBERF
five years 10,000 14,722
168,800 178,055
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain B8 & & 2K E & & X (AR
a repayment on demand clause (shown FEGBENNT) RER—F
under current liabilities) and repayable NEZEZIETERZER
within one year (] 48,056 43,000
216,856 221,055
Less: Amount due within one year shown ¥ :RREBBEY R
under current liabilities —FREHEE (183,263) (166,333)
Amounts due after one year shown as non- RIERSEFEIN R Z
current liabilities —F I eE 33,593 54,722
& The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates * HSBEOBEERER BB ETCHETE
set out in the loan agreements. HKAHETE -
As at 31st December, 2019 and 31st December, 2018, R=ZE—NF+=-A=+—HBER=ZFE—N\F+
the unsecured bank borrowings carried interest at floating ZA=+—8 EEWBETEERZHNEG
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate B EARAEEEAERESRENERR - &
risk. The interest rates are linked to Hong Kong Interbank ENNEEBFBROTAEFRS(BBRITRER

Offered Rate (“HIBOR"). B#HE -
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SHARE CAPITAL 22, B
Number of Share
shares capital
R &8 g A<
2019 & 2018 2019 & 2018
—E-hAEFR —E-hAEFR
—E-N\F —E-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEI0B T 2T @A KNG
Authorised: AR
At 1st January, 2018, R=—ZE—N\F—HF—8"
31st December, 2018 and - N\FE+=ZA=+—H8K
31st December, 2019 —E-hnF+=ZA=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRESERA:
At 1st January, 2018 and RZE-NEF—HA—Bk
31st December, 2018 —Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H 796,824,000 79,682
Exercise of share options 17 {65 8 AR 4 20,820,000 2,082
At 31st December, 2019 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—8 817,644,000 81,764
DEFERRED TAXATION 23. EEMHIE
The followings are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) UTAaREBRZZELEHREAG(BE)RR
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during AREEERUAEREET Y28
the current and prior reporting years:
Undistributed
Accelerated earnings Write-
tax of the PRC down of
Tax losses depreciation subsidiaries inventories Total
HEIMBARZ
BEBE MEBERE KK & A 7 E MR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FTHET TET
At 1st January, 2018 R=ZZE—-\F—HA—H — 43,496 21,524 (32) 64,988
Charge to profit or loss FEmMNkR = 7,651 765 = 8,416
At 31st December, 2018 RZZE—\F
+-A=+-—"8 = 51,147 22,289 (32) 73,404
(Credit) charge to profit or loss 7 #82 (5t A) 1% (8,663) (235) (6,089) 32 (14,955)
Utilised during the year FAEHA = = (1,249) = (1,249)
At 31st December, 2019 RZE-NE+=A
=+—H (8,663) 50,912 14,951 = 57,200
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed WIEPRCERESRE  BHOHR AP ENS
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the AFE—EENFEF A —BEMBIw A Em

PRC subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. TR 2R AME o
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) on 3rd June, 2013 for the primary
purpose of providing incentive or rewards to selected
participants for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including executive or non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), of the Company,
its subsidiaries, or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity, and any consultants, advisers,
managers, officers or entities that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of
the ordinary resolution for adoption of the Scheme. The
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised at
any time under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders in accordance with the Scheme.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates would result in the shares in the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue and with a value (based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company at the offer
date of each offer) in excess of HK$5,000,000, such grant
of options must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders in accordance with the Scheme.

24.

LR 242 X
BREXNXZERETS

ARAERZZE—=F A=A ERRNE
PRt E([%FHE)) T2ENARERNEEE
HEMZEE2EEFLZBREE -

RIEZFTE  ARAREEGARARA - HH
BRARASAEBEEMKE AR FHETAREZ
FaRBE(MRERKBDZ2AERER(BRE
HITEERFRTESHABUFATER)R
HERE  UBBEARFKND - B ARA
BEREIERIBRETEMNRAASE ZEM
RERRHEMARERBRHEEWHRE 2
ERHER AKEXRERAMREEBZER
B PAR A AR S B S AT /] T iR B 1R (L A
K RABEIHEHBERMEREZERMEAA
B &8 SABEHE-

REZFERLZEREEZRTEERT T
BUOZBENEE TS EBARMNZTE
ZEBAZREBRBEAARRRCETRNDZ
10% ° 7 {E fa] B ) B 17 R AR B & 5t &R il R
TEZEEREMATAEITROZHE
TREBARRTRDEITRAZI0% -

RERRBBRRBZ B ELRAAE - REMA
BAFTRER L Z BB SR 2 RMHEE - NME
fl+—EAHE BT FEBARE R
REBHTRNZ1% ° MR —BEBRRABL
FRTEEFHEARESAZHBEALREE
MBRE  SEHARTZALTZABEBERE
EoEmrazfbAf(@EER)L+—@
HERE  EREBTUBETZARARD @ &
HKERRBDBITRMNDER 1% BEEGR
BARBBRMRERAREBREBR ZHETE
st H)#8 #85,000,0007% 7T RIAR B % 5T & % 08
REBREAELEFIARRRRILAE -
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BE—E—NFfT_HA="1—HIFEF

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 24, URBZFzZHE)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) BREXAXRZERETE(Z)
An option may be exercised at any time during the period BRETRESETANSARAZHERA
to be determined and notified by the directors to the BERFITE - MARBETE - AIRERIT L ERE
grantee and in the absence of such determination, from B REREZERERI 2R T HZEREL
the date of acceptance of an offer of the grant of such BT FE2RFEAH - RENEBRER AN
option to the earlier of the date on which such option 1S TTHRE
lapses and ten years from the date of offer of that option.
A consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the offer.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of TEEIBERAARESEE  ETASERRMD
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of HE AQRBRMOAREE BB Z K mE &K
the nominal value of the share; the closing price of the ZEELAHNAEEER 2 FHRTEZR
Company's shares on the date of offer; and the average BE
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TERPEEHESLEMEEREZARAER
share options held by the directors and other employees BUAMZEERERTRAZEHFE:
and movements in such holdings during the year:
Granted Exercised Exercised Forfeited

Outstanding during the during the  Outstanding during the during the BOITEETIT]
Option type Date of grant Exercise price at 1.1.2018 year year at 31.12.2018 year Il at 31.12.2019

R=B-NE R=B-N\§F R=B-h%E

-A-H tZA=1-H t=A=1-H
BRERR BHBH E i K 17 68 FREH ERE DE i ERE FRRY i K 17 6
HKS
B

Granted under Scheme
R &R
Option type G 15.10.2018 0.435 = 42,640,000 = 42,640,000 (20,820,000 (200,000) 21,620,000
GHRERE
Exercisable at the end of the year - 300,000
RERTTE
Weighted average exercise price N/A 0.435 N/A 0.435 0.435 0.435 0.435
MEFHTREE T@ER @A
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 24, UBHRZR2Z2EZHE)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) BREXAXRZERETE(Z)
Note: B 5 -
The vesting period, which is the period from the date of grant to BEERE:GEHARLBHMEnTF AR -
the exercisable date, of the share options granted is determined THARFREZEREAREERERET - BRIEZ
by directors of the Company at each time when the options are FTEIRE CERE 2 A AETR AT I 176 B
granted. Holders of share options granted under the Scheme 1TfE E AR
may only exercise their options during the exercisable periods as
follows:
Option type G Maximum % of share options exercisable
GEBERE ATEEBREESESL

Exercisable periods:

AIAT{EEA A -
1.5.2019 - 30.4.2020 up to 50%

& (= A #50%
1.5.2020 — 30.4.2021 up to 75%

R& A ETE%
1.5.2021 - 30.4.2026 up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

B2 AT E100% (A RITHEZRR)
During the year ended 31st December, 2018, options type HE-Z—)\F+-A=+—HLFE  AQA
G were granted on 15th October, 2018. The estimated fair RZZE—N\F+ATHAAEHCGEBRE - AT
values of the options granted were HK$8,720,000. i B AR B 2 5T A £ B 48,720,000/ 7T ©
During the year ended 31st December, 2019, 20,820,000 BEZZ-—NFI+ZA=1+—HBLEFE KA
ordinary shares were issued on 6 May 2019 at the AIRCEBREETERR-_Z—NAFEAARX
subscription price of HK$0.435 each for a cash H AR EE(E T R%0.435/% 7T #1720,820,000 % &
consideration of HK$9,057,000 upon the exercise of the B - REREA9,057,0008 7T - RITEBH
share options type G. The weighted average share price BI04 IR (B R 0.4108 T °

at the date of exercise was HK$0.410.

The fair values of the share options at the grant date were RELHBH ERENAFEDFEAZEBAR
calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into the NetE - ZBRAZBHAHBEHAT

model were as follows:

Share price on the date of grant RFEL BB ZKRE HK$0.42% 7T
Exercise price TE(E HK$0.435/%8 7T
Expected volatility SEREN 60%
Expected life from date of grant &L AR TERT FH 0.5 — 7.5 years 4
Risk free rate = 3 fa ) = 2.42%
Expected dividend vyield Earlk B X 1.78%
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical TEHRIEARBE AR AR H B A AI8758 #i
volatility of the Company’s 875-day share prices before ZRERBEZRBEETE - ZEAFER 2B
the date of grant. The expected life used in the model has FHEREEER T UHE RS  1TERS RT
been adjusted, based on the management'’s best estimate, RREZEEEHZZEBTHAE -

for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioral considerations.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 24, U2 HE)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) BREXAXRZERETE(Z)
The Group recognised total expense of HK$4,697,000 AEEBERBEEZE_TE—NLF+=-A=+—H01
(2018: HK$2,392,000) for the year ended 31st December, FERADNAMEHzBEREEH 2 BER
2019 in relation to share options granted by the Company. 4,697,000/ 7L (=& — //\F : 2,392,000 7T) °
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25, KReEHERE
The Group as lessee AEBEERAEA
As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had commitments RZZE—N\F+=-—A=1+—H AEEBRET
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AR EHEAARKERERERE B
operating leases which fall due as follows: TR 51 HA FE B A -
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —F R 7,601
7,601
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by LEREFBREASEESE THERSE R
the Group for certain of its warehouse and ancillary office AYMEZENEE RZZE—N\F+ZA=+
properties. At 31st December, 2018, leases are negotiated —B - HEZFEHFHEETAME  LAEYD
for an average term of two years with fixed monthly HEZNEREAM -
rentals over the term of the leases.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26. EARKE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZZE—-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of the ERTHBRREE B RE
acquisition of plant and equipment REBEBERZHEWREE
contracted for but not provided in the NG

consolidated financial statements 93,934 4,684
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#HE—

27.

E—NF1T=—A=+—HIFE
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Hong Kong

The Group has joined the MPF Scheme for its employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

PRC

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the salaries of their employees to the state-managed
retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the vyear, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to approximately HK$11,613,000
(2018: HK$12,654,000).

27.

iR ¢k 48 7 5T &
BB

AEEREEBREREMARESE - %ﬁ%ﬁ‘i\
HEIRBE AT S S RPN REIER
@ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂ %ﬁ%%ﬁiwzéﬂfﬁ‘ﬁﬁiﬁ
%@ﬁé Bl THRBYXFEAZRGZEDT

*EF%@%%H?U%EE'J BREMEEBEB
/Ahziﬁﬁ“ﬁ FEHRLL AR IE AT B R -
AEERRBERFE cE-—BEETRABRESS
SR ENEK -

AiEm R HMEE WSR2 RE DG
BRI EERAREERAERE 2L
TES 2K -

B¢ B X
o P
1$H>

o El

AEEZPEMNBAREERTEBFEEZ
REBRABHNAEKE - HEBRRAAKK
FREZFME B ERABERER ZERNK
BAE B MR - ARERRIRENGHE 2 M —
BEERAZEBNRENHRK -

FRRKRBFEEIH KA A11,613,000% 7T
(== —)\% : 12,654,000/ 7T ) °
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The IRD had previously issued estimated/additional
assessments to the Company and certain subsidiaries
of the Company in June 2006, October 2006, March
2011, March 2012, March 2013, March 2014, September
2014, March 2015, December 2015 and March 2017
amounting to HK$60,471,000 in aggregate. The Group had
lodged valid objections with the IRD against the relevant
estimated/additional assessments.

Subsequent to the lodgement of the objections of the
Group, tax payment of HK$1,993,000 was made during
the year ended 31st December, 2006. Also, banker’'s
undertakings of HK$3,828,000 were arranged by the
Group and had been accepted by the IRD as security
for the payment of the above-mentioned tax. Further,
tax reserve certificates of HK$7,211,000 in aggregate
in respect of 2005/2006 and 2007/2008 to 2010/2011,
pending the outcome of the tax audits and the objections,
were purchased in December 2006, June 2014,
November 2014, June 2015, March 2016 and May 2017.

The IRD further issued estimated/additional assessments
to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company
in January 2018 in respect of year of assessment
2011/2012 demanding for tax in dispute of HK$12,174,000
in aggregate, including an aggregate of HK$8,874,000
in three assessments issued with the same amount of
assessable profit to the subsidiaries, in the opinion of the
directors, pending for ascertaining of which of them should
be taxed (if any). The Group had lodged objections with
the IRD against these estimated/additional assessments
in February 2018. Further, tax certificate of HK$2,970,000
in respect of 2011/2012, pending the outcome of the tax
audits and the objections, was purchased in March 2018.

The IRD further issued estimated/additional assessments
to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company
in January 2019 in respect of year of assessment
2012/2013 demanding for tax in dispute of HK$4,260,000
in aggregate, including an aggregate of HK$2,940,000
in three assessments issued with the same amount of
assessable profit to the subsidiaries, in the opinion of the
directors, pending for ascertaining of which of them should
be taxed (if any). The Group had lodged objections with
the IRD against these estimated/additional assessments in
February 2019. Further, tax certificate of HK$990,000 in
respect of 2012/2013, pending the outcome of tax audits
and the objections, was purchased in April 2019.

28.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
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28.

29.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. RAREE(ZE
On 28th October, 2019, a settlement proposal (the RZZTE—NF+A=-F+/N\H AQFH L@
“Settlement Proposal”) regarding above tax audits and BRER-BE—=/"F—NEEF_F—)\
the years of assessment 2013/2014 to 2018/2019 was F/ R NERBEERARERRIMERE
submitted by the Company to the IRD, which was HE((M@EZE]) BNBERERZ=ZT 1
approved by the IRD on 17th December, 2019. Based on F+_A+LtHERBGHIE - BREBEMBEESR
the Settlement Proposal, no additional tax provision is ECASEEAFIREINREEE  MEFZ
required be provided by the Group and previous years' f% I8 # #58,310,0007% 7T & F& 1+ F 81,773,000
tax provision amounting to HK$8,310,000 and interest BITEBRBANRBEFERE 211,171,000 7T
payable of HK$1,773,000 were settled by the tax reserve ZREBFEE - I BEBE#U1,385,000
certificates of HK$11,171,000 purchased in prior years. BB AR & °
Further, a tax penalty of HK$1,385,000 was charged by
the IRD.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BEALIRS
The remuneration of directors, who are the key GRAEETEEBABZEERNFACHE
management of the Group, during the year are as follows. PN
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Short-term benefit %2 HA 48 F) 14,952 16,678
Post-employment benefit RIKE 54 62
Share-based payments LARR 9 214 2 2 i 2,854 1,453
17,860 18,193

The remuneration of executive directors, who are also
the key executives of the Group, is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

HITEENERAEETETRAE  BREZ
HemFHEZEeRFEARRETEBEE

E °



30.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 £g#% 143

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B A R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BR2=—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30 MEEFHZEEHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRFAINAEEREZTH 2 AEED  2IER
arising from financing activities, including both cash SRR  BEFDELEZABIER
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing fﬁ%mi&ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’*ﬁ%@ﬁé\fﬁ(ﬁfﬁ
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ERFHEAMEFHRESREZEE -

cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.
Unsecured
Dividend Lease bank Interest
payable liabilities borrowings payable Total
g
ERSRE HEEE RITEE ERFE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FAT FHT FHET
(note 20) (note 21)
(BF#20) (BT #E21)

At 1st January, 2018 RZZE—\F—H—H — — 155,937 309 156,246

Financing cash flows* BERERE* (63,746) = 59,856 (4,832) (8,722)

Dividend declared EEIREKE 63,746 = == = 63,746

Interest accrued FEETFI 8 = = = 4,832 4,832

Foreign exchange translation 4ME#® & = = 5,262 = 5,262

At 31st December, 2018 RZZT—N\F

tTZA=+—H = = 221,055 309 221,364

Adjustment upon application of & ﬁﬁ B B S 2 A

HKFRS 16 (note 2) £165% 2 38 % (i 7F2) = 7,503 = = 7,503

At 1st January, 2019 RZE—-—NE—HA—H = 7,503 221,055 309 228,867

Financing cash flows* MERERE* = (8,061) (3,791) (6,059) (17,911)

Renewal of lease agreement** #& 417 & 3% ** = 8,691 = — 8,691

Interest accrued R FI B = 130 — 6,059 6,189

Foreign exchange translation 9\\ T*M = (120) (408) — (528)

At 31st December, 2019 RZZE—-N&F

+=-B=+—H = 8,143 216,856 309 225,308

@ The cash flows represent the proceeds used for dividend @ ReERERGAESRERPHEINRE
payment, addition/repayment of bank loans, repayment WEIE R EBERTER  BEEHEARE
of lease liabilities and interest paid in the consolidated REAMF B -
statement of cash flows.

B During the year, the Group renewed lease agreements for o3 FRA AEEBARBEEVENTERZE
the use of leased properties for one year. On the lease H—F NEEFAKRE  ASBEREREAE
commencement, the Group recognised HK$8,691,000 of & 78,691,000/ T &7 & £ 158,691,000/ 7T
right-of-use asset and HK$8,691,000 lease liability, which IIEXEEFFRERH °

is @ major non-cash transaction.
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31.

32.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. EXEARER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AERAEEETSERBIEEFELE K
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern EEHHEABTEE UEBRFEBEERA
while maximising the return to shareholders through the ERRETFEMARENESRZARLR - XEEH
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's HEBREATFREZRTE -
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which REBHEALBRRERES (B B EH 721
includes the unsecured bank borrowings disclosed in note i BEERBRERTEE)UARARRRIES A
21 and equity attributable to owners of the Company, EEEDS(BEEEITRARERE) -
comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure KRRIESTHRAEALE - EABRI—
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors o ARREZEEEREEHNARTEER
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the MEERR - REAQRAEENESR  A5HEH
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on BEBIRMNRE - BITHA - BRI G NA &E
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the THERENERREAEERE EAFTEHEREER
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the B -
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. ¢@TA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) £2MIAZEHR
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Financial assets % EE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEXNIGFTEZ
B & E 441,196 395,516
Financial liabilities HEEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEXNAGFEZ
MBamE 370,361 422,870
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade, bills and other payables, lease
liabilities and unsecured bank borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities

A significant portion of the Group’'s sales is
denominated in RMB and significant portion of the
Group's purchases is denominated in RMB and USD.
The Group’'s manufacturing operations are located in
the PRC.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank
balances, trade receivables, trade, bills and other
payables and unsecured bank borrowings are
denominated in the foreign currencies of the
relevant group entities. The Group currently does not
have a foreign exchange hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging foreign
exposure should the need arise.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
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32. ¢RIA(E)

(b)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are as follows:

Assets

BE
2019
=E-NF

HK$'000
TERT

RMB AR
HK$ 7 TT
UsD =S

34,527
4,535
13,374

SRTARE)

(b)

BHRBREEEERBE(E)

% m g (&)
S B (4B )

FNEINIBEREERELAE(H)

RBER  AKRBAEHEEEESAY
EEENIZEBIENEREERE

MEBEz2REENT
Liabilities
=R

2018 2019 2018
—\F —E-NEF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET
9,268 - =
3,677 65,000 83,000
6,935 6,906 40,305

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. Sensitivity rate of
5% represents the assessment of the directors
of the Company of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact
relates to monetary assets or liabilities that are
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD against the
functional currencies of relevant group entities, HK$
or RMB respectively.

M K

TRANAEEHEASEER 2 E
BEEENEAEREENYS CHEE -
RN BANG EEHEXRAELE
ZEEFG MEAEDNMERIEAINE
ECZHAFRAERIER - U BAiskéJa
BH H R E R 2 5% &

TXZEBRESTBRAARE BT
RETHEZEREEXAE D B LA

MEEERNEEBETIARKZY
@
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In relation to monetary assets, where the functional
currency of the relevant group entity strengthens
5% against the currency in which the assets are
denominated, there would be a increase in post-
tax loss (2018: decrease in post-tax profit) for the
year. However, in relation to monetary liabilities,
where the functional currency of the relevant group
entity strengthens 5% against the currency in
which the liabilities are denominated, there would
be a decrease in post-tax loss (2018: increase in
post-tax profit) for the year. A 5% weakening of
the functional currency would have an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax loss (2018: profit)
for the year.

e MWK
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32. ¢RIA(E)

(b)

RMB Impact

2019
“E-RE
HK$'000
TR

Biema
(Z2-N%:
#8) (R 4) 3 1

(Decrease) increase in
post-tax loss (2018: profit)

ARBZEE

—E-N\F

2018

HK$'000
TR

BHRBREEEERBE(E)

% /m kg ()
S B (4B )

FNEINIBEREERELAE(H)

S8 SRS AT (AE)

HREKEEMS  WEMSEER 26
ERREEMRATEZESTES
AFEREBEFISE N T -N\F:
BEFRERD) - AT AEBEERMS -
MEEEEERE 2 ERNRBEMK
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In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to lease liabilities (see note 20 for
details) and cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 21 for
details of these borrowings), bank balances and
deposits. The directors consider that the interest
rate risk on bank balances and deposits are minimal,
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group’'s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
arising from the Group's borrowings denominated in
HKS.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivatives
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. Increase or decrease in a 50 basis
point represents the assessment of the directors of
the Company of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. For the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings, if interest
rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss (2018: profit) for the year would
have increased/decreased by HK$905,000 (2018:
decreased/increased by HK$923,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

(b)

32. ¢RMIA(E)

BHRBREEEERBE(E)

wAEE B ()
TEYN

AEEARBFERITEEREREE
ZHBERNKE2)  RITERRERE
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31st December, 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on trade receivables individually or based
on a provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas, and thus the Group does not
have significant concentration of credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors
credit-impaired with gross carrying amount of
HK$2,935,000, as at 31st December, 2019 (2018:
HK$2,433,000), the Group determines the ECL on
the trade receivables that are not credit-impaired
with gross carrying amount of HK$146,560,000 as
at 31st December, 2019 (2018: HK$174,066,000) by
using a provision matrix, grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics by reference to past default
experience and current past due status of debtors.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019

BE—E—NFfT_HA="1—HIFEF

32. ¢RIA(E)

(b)

BHRBREEEERBE(E)

1= B /3 Bg R Bl 1E 57 14
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ past due status to
assess the impairment for its customers because
these customers consist of a large number of
customers with common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31st December, 2019,
an impairment allowance (credit-impaired) of
HK$551,000 (2018: nil) was recognised for trade
receivables.

Bank balances

The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances
by reference to information relating to probability of
default and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the 12m
ECL on bank balances with gross carrying amount of
HK$292,299,000 as at 31st December, 2019 (2018:
HK$219,398,000) is considered to be insignificant.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

32. ¢RIA(E)

BHRBREEEERBE(E)

1= B /3 B R 6l 1B 5P 18 (A2
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of
the Company make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31st
December, 2019, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits with gross carrying
amount of HK$2,337,000 as at 31st December,
2019 (2018: HK$2,052,000) was insignificant and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st December, 2019,
the Group has available undrawn borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$252,941,000 (2018:
HK$215,223,000). The Group monitors its current
and expected liquidity requirements regularly
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable
financial institutions to meet the Group's liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
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32. eMIA(E)
(b) BIBREBREEEERBRE(E)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing
to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

32. ¢RIA(E)

(b)

BEEBEEEERRR(E

B EEmE(E)

TRFVNAEBEZHBEBEZRBEL
BIMEIR - RRDIBEAKE AR BRA
FORFINHANTBABERTRERS
MEBIR - KAlZ  BERERKEERRK
RZBRITEE > TWBRTEETRERE
Mo MAZFEEHHM - Et3EITE
BHRAEZIBRARRETERAY -
RPEREMNERASRERE -

B E 2 KT R

Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1month  month(s) to1year 1-2year(s) 2-5years  cash flows amount
mEYE  RERg  -EAE =fARE2 ARRE
ERNE  -fAR =fiA -F -FE@E WEZLE HEEE KA
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
2019 ZE-NE
Trade, bills and other 25 RERAM
payables ERHE - 153,505 - - - - 153,505 153,505
Lease liabilities HEARE 30 693 1,460 6,044 333 - 8,530 8,143
Unsecured bank horrowings  EHBRTEE
— variable rate — %8 36 153,740 6,457 25,396 24,400 10,194 220,187 216,856
307,938 1917 31,440 24,733 10,194 382,222 378,504
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
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32. eMIA(E)
(b) BIBERBREEEERBRE(E)

TEELEE(E)

REE 2 RFLERZE(E)

Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or less than -3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
nterest rate 1 month month(s)  to 1year  1-2 yearls)  2-5 years cash flows amount
nETy  REXS AR ZfARZ AFRRE
ERNE AR =R - -EEWE WEELE REEE RAf
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
2018 ZE-N\F
Trade, bills and other payables €5 - 2H R £
ERHE = 201,815 = = = = 201815 201,815
Unsecured bank horrowings  EHBRTEE
— variable rate - %8 34 86,334 51,313 31,864 41,201 14,943 225,655 221,055
288,149 51,313 31,864 41,201 14,943 427470 422,810

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31st December, 2019, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$48,056,000 (2018: HK$43,000,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment.

PEREREBEEGRARZRTERESE
AL B BES>THRIRERK— @
ARJBE RZTE—NAEF+=_A=+
—H ZERTERONETERTEAAR
& %8 /48,056,000 L (= & — )\ F:
43,000,000/ 7T ) £ & & 72N & B B 7% K
Nk BEEHERITETSTEETE
K BNERZEISHER -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the
management reviews the expected cash flow
information of the Group’s bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause based on the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the agreement
as set out in the table below:

2019 —E-hEF

Bank loans with a repayment & & & 2K (8 &
on demand clause B ZIRITER

2018 —E-N\F

Bank loans with a repayment €& &k Z3K (8 8
on demand clause R ZBITER

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

32. ¢RIA(E)

(b)

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

¥
BRAE
%

2.90

2.89

(c)

BHRBREEEERBE(E

HEELEE(E)
REBE 2 KA LA RE (F)

REEBRDESZRR BEEERETR
FEHEACHEEERANEEBERE
KEEHRAZAEERITERNETR
ERmEERETRA

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
KT H
ReREHAE
HK$'000
FTERT

Within
1 year

Carrying
amount

—
HK$’000
FET

fREME
HK$'000
T

48,209 48,209 48,056

43,108 43,108 43,000
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In early 2020, the outbreak of novel coronavirus has
brought about economic uncertainties over the world
which may impact the operations and financial position of
the Group. The degree of impact could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage. The Group will closely monitor and
evaluate the impacts to the performance of the Group.

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

33.

34.

e MWK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2019
BR2=—F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE

BEHMREH

RIZ_ZFY FEREHRARENEE/ER
RESKIEEN SURSFELAKZENK
ERMBRRL - BAIRBEEZREGEATER
B -ARERTINERERFHHAEERAN

By 48R
FE

RARHABRRERBE

2019 2018
—E-h#F —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F& T

Non-current asset IERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries RITEB AR 2D 1,838,140 1,998,641

Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RFENR 9,667 8,646
Amounts due from subsidiaries & YR B JB A B FRIB 234,634 38,399
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 7174 11,235
251,475 58,280
Current liabilities REBAE

Other payables and accrued charges H M FETRIB R FEET X 12,714 12,552
Amounts due to subsidiaries & A1 B B R B IR 1,225,137 1,229,057
Taxation payable & # %% 18 1,270 551
1,239,121 1,242,160
Net current liabilities mEAEFE (987,646) (1,183,880)
Net assets BEFE 850,494 814,761

Capital and reserves BARG#E
Share capital N 81,764 79,682
Reserves & 1 768,730 735,079
850,494 814,761
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34.

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Details of the movement of reserves in the Company’'s are set
out below:

GEE

EVNEPX 1T

34. RARAMBRRERBEE

AHIEHIN T

Share Share options Retained
premium reserves profits Total
R 17 325 (B BB 1B =& 78 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January, 2018 RZZE-—N\F—H—H 481,258 = 280,521 761,779
Profit and total comprehensive 78 & 2 ® Kk = £ 58
income for the year = = 34,654 34,654
Recognition of equity-settled  ## 78 DA BR # 45 B A B 15
share-based payments Xtz X = 2,392 = 2,392
Dividend paid BT S = = (63,746) (63,746)
At 31st December, 2018 R-ZZT—\F
+=—A=+—H 481,258 2,392 251,429 735,079
Profit and total comprehensive 4 & Il & K & M I 25 42 58
income for the year == == 21,979 21,979
Recognition of equity-settled — &R AMRE & B H X
share-based payments (- gss = 4,697 = 4,697
Exercise of share option 175 B R A 6,975 = = 6,975
Transfer upon exercise of RITEBREEA
share options 4,159 (4,159) — —
At 31st December, 2019 RZZE-NF
+=-—A=+—H 492,392 2,930 273,408 768,730
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. X EffBARIE R
R-T—NAFE+-_A=+—"BE-_Z—N\F+=

A=Z+—RZXEWBRRAFBNAT:

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st
December, 2019 and 31st December, 2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of nominal value
of issued capital/registered
capital and voting right

Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital held by the Company Principal activities
ANRFRE
AL ERTRMERE/ BROTRE/ZMEL
WEAR AR EES BEARE RREEZHEELH TEER
Chun Yik (Macao Commercial Offshore) ~Macau Ordinary shares MOP100,000 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of
Limited corrugated packaging
ER(RPBEREERK)ERAA b ! 3 1% 100,00038 PT B REakzHERES
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Ware Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Factory Limited
EHEBYEnmERAR EE ERR2ET REER
Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial ~ PRC Contributed capital US$112,247,803 100 100 Manufacturing and trading
Limited* (equivalent to approximately of containerboard and
HK$764,494,899) corrugated packaging
REBHBEEBERAR* FE E H1R7A112,247,803% T (B E R4 ERARRBEOR ZRER
764,494,8997% 1) 25
Hop Fung Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Provision of management
service
ELBERBRRAA e L@R2ET REEERS
Hop Fung Group Company Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$600 100 100 Investment holding
EBRLES/ EAMRE0ET REER
Bt
Hop Fung International Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Provision of accounting
service
REBEBRCEERATA EE ERR2ET REEHRE
Man Shung (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau Ordinary shares MOP100,000 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of
Limited corrugated packaging
BIRCRMBEEERB BERAF B 3 1 100,00058 F9 B AFREZBERES
RrEnfaERAF* PRC Contributed capital HK$23,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of
corrugated packaging
HE E 418k 423,000,000 7T EFEBRRZRERES
ceER ORI ERAR* PRC Contributed capital HK$25,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of

elei

B Bk 725,000,000 & 7T

corrugated packaging
RRekzHERES
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35.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

* Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited, B2 2%
HamBRAF and EE2EmORY)BRAF are wholly
foreign owned enterprises.

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at 31st December, 2019 and 31st December, 2018 or at
any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of directors of the Company, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

35. EMBLARER(E)

* HREGEHMBEARAA Re#EnfmA
RRElkea8dmCRI)BERRAABREEIN
Bz

% Hop Fung Group Company Limited4h = E
FMEWBARIYBEARRMEERE -

R-ZE—AE+_A=+—HAR-_ZT—N\F+=
B=+—HB®XERNEMER  SHBATHE
BREES o

ERINBARREZTAREASEXEREE
BEEREZASBENBAR -EFERR K
HMEARFBIHEEHREBERITE
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. X EMiBARER (&)

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other R|EMAR  ARAEEHASEME TBE
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. These AZHMHBAR - ZEWNBATRES B
subsidiaries are operated in Hong Kong, Macau, BVI, M HBRLXHS  TEREFETEE - %ZE
PRC and Southeast Asia. The principal activities of these MBARIZEEXEBKHMEMT :

subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FTEEK TEEXEMH MEAREAE
2019 2018
Investment holding BVI 2 2
®EER EBRAHE
Hong Kong 1 —
BB
3 2
Provision of management service Hong Kong 2 1
12 E 18 AR 15 BB
Inactive BVI 1 1
mE EBREAHES
Hong Kong - 2
BB
PRC 1 1
H
Southeast Asia 2 —
R R
Macau 1 —
P!
5 4

10 7
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHME

Year ended 31st December,
BE+-—A=+—HLFE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—hF ZT—ARF —ZTE—+tF —T)N\F ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FA& T FH& T FHE T FHT FET

RESULTS E
Revenue I 25 1,066,641 1,179,444 1,523,210 1,423,860 1,194,082
Cost of sales 85 & K A (853,879) (911,748)  (1,117,744) (1,223,626) (1,078,828)
Gross profit E 7 212,662 267,696 405,466 200,234 115,254
Other income His g A 13,195 10,963 17,692 21,191 20,584
Other gains and losses Hip = & B 18 123 3,747 (5,055) (7,563) (2,297)
Impairment loss under EHEEBEBEER

expected credit loss model T KR E & 18 = = = = (551)
Selling and distribution costs & & 7 #4 Ak A (61,400) (67,590) (67,123) (51,176) (45,689)
Administrative expenses THAX (88,619) (97,243) (149,824) (92,471) (83,662)
Other expenses Hin 2 (23,169) (24,571) (27,493) (23,665) (18,168)
Finance costs B 755 B AR (10,698) (5,045) (2,096) (4,832) (6,189)
Changes in fair value TESMTARTE

of derivative financial )|

instruments 323 = = = —
Profit (loss) before taxation %t A % )& (&5 18) 42,417 87,957 171,567 41,718 (20,718)
Income tax (expense) credit Frig#i (Bxx) K % (6,129) (11,570) (33,857) (11,246) 12,799
Profit (loss) for the year, FiN/NGTE7 ¥ =Ny

attributable to owners of FEFNE(ERE)

the Company 36,288 76,387 137,710 30,472 (7,919)

At 31st December,

R+=B=+—~H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—1F ZE-—RF ZE—tF ZT)\F ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T FET FE T FET THET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE

Total assets MEE 1,943,015 2,089,280 2,113,096 2,089,377 1,997,270
Total liabilities FER=Ri (462,677) (632,535) (474,783) (5639,155) (465,987)

Total equity attributable to AR A A A E1G
AR

owners of the Company HE 23 1,480,338 1,456,745 1,638,313 1,550,222 1,631,283
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